[_%

AGENDA John Harabedian, Mayor
SPECIAL MEETING John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 2 Rachelle Arizmendi Council Member

Gene Goss, Council Member
Tuesday, November 12, 2019
: . Sue Spears, City Clerk
Closed Session 5:30 pm Michael Amerio, City Treasurer

City Hall Council Chambers
232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard
Sierra Madre, California 91024

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda. Under the Brown Act, Council is
prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a
subsequent meeting. Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be
delegated. These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately prior to the
closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session.

i CLOSED SESSION ]

Mayor Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, Council Member

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL Arizmendi, and Council Member Goss

PUBLIC COMMENT Regarding Closed Session Items
I RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING:

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—Existing Litigation (Government
Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1)
Case: Stonehouse, LLC v. City of Sicrra Madre (case No.’s BS 105770 and
BS 106081}

| 2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Government Code Section 54957
Title: City Manager

ACTION ITEMS
Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters,
I including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.

MEETING ASSISTANCE

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at
(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

[ o s s




John Harabedian, Mayor

John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem
Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

AGENDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, November 12, 2019

Sue Spears, City Clerk

6:30 PM Michael Amerio, City Treasurer

City Hall Council Chambers
232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard
Sierra Madre, California 91024

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL:
Mayor Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, Council Member Arizmendi and Council Member Goss.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INSPIRATION:
Mayor John Harabedian

APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA:
Vote of the Council to proceed with City business.

APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES:
Approval of the City Council meeting minutes from October 8, 2019.
Approval of the City Council meeting minutes from October 22, 2019.

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS:
Reporting of Council Member activities related to City business.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda. Under the Brown Act, Council is
prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a
subsequent meeting. Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be
delegated. These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.




ACTION ITEMS

CONSENT

a)

b)

d)

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE 2021-2029

Recommendation that the City Council approve a professional services agreement with Karen
Warner Associates to prepare the City’s 2021-2029 Housing Element Update and authorize the
City Manager to execute the contract.

CONSIDERATION OF URGENCY ORDINANCE 1420-U REPEALING CHAPTER 9.48 OF
THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE

Recommendation that the City Council repeal chapter 9.48 of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code
to conform to current California State Law as directed by the California Supreme Court.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-58 AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND
RECEIPT OF, SB 2 PLANNING GRANTS PROGRAM FUNDS

Recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution 19-58 for authorization to submit a
2019 California Senate Bill 2 Planning Grants Program application and to authorize the receipt of
program funds once the City’s application is approved.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-61 APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS

Recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution 19-61 for approval of payment of
City warrants in the aggregate amount of $635,451.90; Sierra Madre Library warrants in the
aggregate amount of $1,738.60; and payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $343,471.19;
for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1.

AB 1600 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT FOR DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE ACTIVITY

Recommendation that the City Council receive and file the annual AB1600 Compliance Report
for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 in accordance with California Government Code Section 66006.

DISCUSSION

1.

KERSTING COURT GENERAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT DESIGN, ADDITIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT, AND ARTS IN PUBLIC PLACES RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Council approve the Additional Services Agreement from LRM
Associates totaling $32,100 for the additional trades and services necessary to fully complete the
design of the project; and approve conceptual design for the Kersting Court General
Improvements Project; and approve the Community Services Commission recommendation for
the Arts in Public Places to fund an environmental art piece.




CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-60 AMENDING THE GENERAL FUND BALANCE
POLICY AND AUTHORIZATION FOR A PRE-PAYMENT OF $3,000,000 TO CalPERS FOR
UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY (UAL)

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 19-60 Amending the General Fund
Balance Policy; and authorize a lump sum pre-payment of $3,000,000 to CalPERS for PERS UAL
and the budget amendments necessary to fund the prepayment

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-59 APPROVING A PENSION AND OPEB FUNDING
POLICY

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No0.19-59 Approving a Pension and
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Funding Policy

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-62 AMENDING THE CITY’S CLASSIFICATION PLAN
AND SALARY MATRIX FOR EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL-EXEMPT
POSITIONS

Recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution 19-62, Amending the Classification
Plan and Salary Matrix for the following classifications: Executive Management positions and
Confidential-Exempt positions (not previously included in the 2.1% Cost of Living increase ); and
it is recommended that the Police Lieutenant position also be approved for a COLA increase

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-63 CALLING AND GIVING NOTICE OF THE
HOLDING OF A GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER
3, 2020, FOR THE ELECTION OF CERTAIN OFFICERS AS REQUIRED BY THE PROVISION
OF THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA RELATING TO GENERAL LAW CITIES;
AND CONSIDERATION OF URGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 1419-U REPEALING SECTION
2.04.090 OF THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO “PROCEDURE FOR
FILLING A CITY COUNCIL MEMBER VACANCY.”

Recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution 19-63 calling and giving notice of the
holding of a general municipal election to be held on Tuesday, November 3, 2020 for the election
of certain officers as required by the provision of laws of the State of California relating to general
law cities; and adopt Urgency Ordinance 1419-U repealing section 2.04.090 of the Sierra Madre
Municipal Code relating to “Procedure for filling a City Council Member vacancy.”




ACTION ITEMS
Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such

matters, including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s
website at www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W.
Sierra Madre Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd.

LIVE BROADCASTS
Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m.

MEETING ASSISTANCE
If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s
office at (626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

ADJOURNMENT
The Regular Council meeting scheduled for November 26, 2019 is cancelled. The City Council

will adjourn to a Regular meeting at this same place on December 10, 2019.




CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY

Tuesday, October 22, 2019 - 6:30 pm
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers
232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL:

Mayor John Harabedian called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll.

Present: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members
Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar and Gene Goss

Absent: None

Also Present: Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney
Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk
James Carlson, Management Analyst
Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works
Rosemary Garcia, Administrative Analyst
Miguel Hernandez, Human Resources Manager
Colby Konisek, Finance Director
Kurt Norwood, Interim Fire Chief
Jose Reynoso, Utility Services Director
Christine Smart, City Librarian
Rebecca Silva-Barron, Community Services Manager
Sue Spears, City Clerk

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INSPIRATION:

Council Member Goss led the Pledge of Allegiance and introduced Sierra Madre resident John Hiller,
who read a prayer about the Bahai faith.

APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA:

Mayor Harabedian asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
Council Member Goss moved to approve the agenda as presented.

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss
Noes: None
Page 1 of 11

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



Absent: None
Abstain: None

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed by a unanimous vote.

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS:

A

E.

Mayor John Harabedian (1) reported that the City Council will be holding the “State of the City” at
Sierra Madre Middle School in January 2020, with part of the message being that the Sierra Madre
Middle School is staying open, (2) said that community voices in support of Sierra Madre Middle
School in this process are extremely important, (3) encouraged residents to speak out in support of
Sierra Madre Middle School with attendance at the meetings, with letters, etc., whether you have
children attending there or not, and (4) said that the new Sierra Madre Middle School is something
that the community fought for a long time and, now that we have it, we want to make sure that we
keep it.

Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia (1) reported that he attended the PUSD forum and spoke in favor of
keeping Sierra Madre Middle School open, (2) encouraged residents to attend the next PUSD Board
meeting on 10/24/19 and to be vocal of their support of keeping Sierra Madre Middle School open,
and (3) reported that he attended a Forum on Vector Control and suggested that people learn more
about Aedes Mosquitoes and what to do to mitigate exposure, as they are here to stay and are an
invasive species, with the Mosquito and Vector Control website as a source of information.

Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi (1) thanked those who participated and spoke at the PUSD
forum regarding proposals to close some PUSD schools, (2) reported that a decision will be made
on 10-24-19 regarding the five options to close some PUSD schools, with closing SM Middle School
as one of the options being considered, (3) expressed that closing SM Middle School is unlikely and
is extremely hopeful that will not happen, (3) commented that it has been great to see the community
come together and speak on behalf of Sierra Madre Middle School to ensure that it stays open, and
(4) reported that she was selected as the Board Chairperson of the Foothill Workforce Development
Policy Board (includes Arcadia, Duarte, Monrovia, Sierra Madre, & South Pasadena).

Council Member Denise Delmar thanked the SM Department of Public Works for the work they did
on Montecito Avenue to replace the pipes and said that Staff were courteous, polite, and did not
cause any problems with the neighbors.

Council Member Gene Goss did not make a report.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS:

Mayor Harabedian opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda.

Patricia Krok & Debbie Moser, Sierra Madre Garden Club, spoke about the Sierra Madre Garden
Club and presented the City Council with a Fall flower arrangement.

Pat Alcorn, Sierra Madre, spoke against the recently passed AB 68, which allows two rental units
in R-1 zones, regardless of a city’s Master Plan or ordinances.

De Alcorn, Sierra Madre, spoke against the recently passed AB68.

Rod Spears, Sierra Madre Library Trustee, invited people to attend the Public Forum on 10-24-
19 @ 7:00 pm being held in the SM Council Chambers to hear an update on the plans for the new

Page 2 of 11

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



Sierra Madre Library by the Friends of the Sierra Madre Library, Sierra Madre Library Trustees,
City Librarian, and others.

¢ Maile Plan, representing US Congress Woman Judy Chu, invited the community to attend the
“Healthy Relationships Workshop — How to Help Your Loved Ones” being held on 11-7-19 at Al
Saints Church in Pasadena.

Mayor Harabedian asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on items not on the agenda.
Seeing no one come forward, Mayor Harabedian closed Public Comment.

PRESENTATION — RECOGNITION OF LITTLE LEAGUE DISTRICT 17 ALL-STAR CHAMPIONS

Mayor Harabedian congratulated the Sierra Madre Little League manager, coaches, and players on their
recent victory as Little League District 17 All-Star Champions. Mayor Harabedian read the City Council
Proclamation and individually presented a City Council certificate to Manager Brian Kriebs, Coach Walker
Haynes, Coach Tim Shepard, and the team members as follows:

Bode Bertsch Lucas Kirages
Kayla Buchok Nicholas Kriebs
Cash Carroll Josh Proctor
Athan Darlas Josh Roberts
Jake Garcia Dane Shepard
Paul Gowen Morgan Sullivan
Caeden Haynes Yahir Treto

PRESENTATION — RECOGNITION OF RETIRING FIRE CAPTAIN GREG CHRISTMAS

Interim Fire Chief Norwood spoke about retiring Fire Captain Greg Christmas’ 13-year service and
contribution to the Sierra Madre Fire Department and presented him with a “flat badge.” Mayor
Harabedian presented Captain Christmas with a City Council proclamation of recognition signed by the
members of the City Council.

PRESENTATION — UPDATE FROM SIERRA MADRE CERT

Amber Moyers, Sierra Madre CERT President, provided an update on Sierra Madre CERT, that included
a PowerPoint, “Sierra Madre Community Emergency Response Team.” Sierra Madre CERT is a local
non-profit dedicated to providing free emergency training to members of the community annually.

Brett Bartlett, on behalf of the Sierra Madre Firefighters Association, presented a check to Sierra Madre
CERT for $2,000.

PRESENTATION — RECOGNITION OF COUNCIL MEMBER DENISE DELMAR

Mayor Harabedian invited local leaders and representatives of elected officials to speak.

Sierra Madre Chamber of Commerce President Luther Tsinoglou, Vice President Carol Canterbury, and
Treasurer Susan Henderson thanked Council Member Delmar for her service to the community and her
contribution as a member of the Sierra Madre Chamber of Commerce.

On behalf of elected officials, the following people presented Council Member Delmar with certificates of
recognition:

o CA Assembly Member Chris Holden — Hector Rodriguez

Page 3 of 11
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



CA Senator Anthony Portantino — David Kim
e LA County Supervisor, 5" District, Kathryn Barger — Christian Daly
e US Congress Woman Judy Chu — Maile Plan

Mayor Harabedian, along with the other City Council Members, spoke of Council Member Delmar’s 13-
year tenure with the City, beginning with serving as the General Plan Chairperson, expressed
appreciation of the opportunity to work and serve together, noted that she will be missed, and wished her
good luck.

Council Member Delmar expressed that it has been an honor to serve the City of Sierra Madre and
recognized working with her City Council colleagues.

Mayor Harabedian opened the meeting up for Public Comment.

e Carol Parker, Sierra Madre, spoke of CM Delmar’s great degree of humility, a lot of fun, and their
friendship.

e Darlene Papa, Lifeline for Pets, thanked CM Delmar for spearheading the SM City Council
presentations for Lifeline for Pets.

e Joe Catalano, Sierra Madre, recognized CM Delmar’s service and leadership as Chairperson of
the City’s General Plan Committee.

e Pat Alcorn, Sierra Madre, spoke of CM Delmar’s work on the General Plan Committee and City
Council service and as someone who she adores and admires.

o De Alcorn, Sierra Madre, thanked CM Delmar for her service to the City of Sierra Madre.

Mayor Harabedian asked if anyone else would like to speak. Seeing no one come forward, Mayor
Harabedian closed Public Comment.

Mayor Harabedian presented a Sierra Madre tile to Council Member Delmar.

Mayor Harabedian recessed the meeting at 7:24 p.m.

Mayor Harabedian reconvened the meeting at 7:39 p.m. Council Member Delmar did not return to the
meeting.

AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:

1. CONSENT CALENDAR

City Clerk Spears gave the following reports under the Consent Calendar:

a) SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 1416 — ADOPTION OF THE 2019 CALIFORNIA
BUILDING CODE - Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and approve for Second
reading by title only, and waive further reading, recommending adoption of Ordinance 1416
pursuant to the 2019 California Building Standards Code amendments

b) SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 1417 — ADOPTION OF THE 2019 FIRE CODE - Staff
recommends that the City Council introduce and approve for second reading Ordinance 1417
by title only, recommending adoption of Ordinance 1417 pursuant to the 2019 California Fire
Code and International Fire Code amendments.

Page 4 of 11

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



c) TREASURERS REPORT- QUARTER ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 - Staff recommends that the

City Council receive and file the Treasurer's Report- Quarter Ending June 30, 2019

d) AWARD THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT TO WEST AND ASSOCIATES FOR

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE DESIGN OF FY 2019-20 STREET

IMPROVEMENTS - Staff recommends that the City Council award a professional services

contract to West and Associates Engineering INC. for engineering design service in the amount
of $45,500 and authorize City Manager or their designee to execute the Professional Services
Agreement with said firm.

e) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-54 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA

MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS - Recommendation that the City Council

approve Resolution 19-54 for approval of payment of City warrants in the aggregate amount
of $979,730.07; Sierra Madre Library warrants in an aggregate amount of $3,929.60; and
payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $355,105.61 for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2019.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on Consent ltems 1a — 1e.
Council Members did not ask any questions.

Mayor Harabedian opened the meeting for Public Comment on the Consent Items. Seeing no one,
Mayor Harabedian closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.
No additional discussion occurred.

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to approve Consent ltems 1a — 1e as presented.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia seconded the motion.

Ayes:

Noes:
Absent:
Abstain:

Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle

Arizmendi and Gene Goss
None

Council Member Denise Delmar
None

The motion to approve Consent Items 1a — 1e as presented was passed by a vote of four (4) yes and
one (1) absent.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

1.

WATERWORKS AMENITY IMPROVEMENTS

Administrative Analyst Garcia reported on this item with the recommendation that the City Council
authorize expenditures on amenity improvements at the Sierra Madre Pool not to exceed $40,000.
Per the Staff Report dated 10-22-19, Waterworks Management, in union with the Community Services
Commission and subcommittee, recommend the following amenity improvements, listed in order of
priority. Not all items will be funded; however, once expenditures reach $40,000, the remaining items
will be deferred to the next fiscal year:

Priority Item Estimated Cost
1 Enclosure from the building to the outdoor pool. $ 13,145
2 Upgrade electrical by adding a sub panel. 8,000

Page 5 of 11

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



3 Electric heaters inside the new enclosure. 4,000

4 Two (2) swimsuit dryers installed. 4,000
5 Four (4) storefront glass doors installed. 10,000
Total Estimated Costs $ 39,145

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi regarding the process of ordering the
materials, given that expenditures are not to exceed $40,000, Admin. Analyst Garcia said that the
intention is to begin with the first three items and then move down the list, if monies are remaining.

Mayor Harabedian requested clarification. Community Services Manager Silva-Barrén stated that
Water Works had obtained the price quotes, items will be purchased in priority order, and that any
items remaining after the $40,000 cap is reached would be deferred to the next fiscal year.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed
Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.

Discussion occurred that there was consensus to authorize the expenditures as presented.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia made a motion to authorize the expenditures on amenity improvements to
the Sierra Madre Pool facility as presented, not to exceed $40,000.

Council Member Goss seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachel
Arizmendi and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent: Council Member Denise Delmar
Abstain: None

The motion to authorize the expenditures on amenity improvements to the Sierra Madre Pool facility
as presented, not to exceed $40,000, was passed by a vote of four (4) yes and one (1) absent.

MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT WITH TOWERPOINT CAPITAL, LLC, FOR THE SALE OF
LEASE INTEREST IN WIRELESS COMMUNICATION SITES ON CITY PROPERTY

Finance Director Konisek reported on this item with the recommendation that the City Council (1)
execute the letter of intent with TowerPoint Capital, LLC for the exclusive option to purchase lease
interest in wireless communication sites on City property and (2) adopt Resolution 19-55, a resolution
of the City Council of the City of Sierra Madre, California, authorizing the Mayor to execute master
lease agreements and other necessary documents for the assignment of certain specified
telecommunications leases to TPA lll, LLC.

Per the Staff Report dated 10-22-19, TowerPoint, a financial services firm that specializes in acquiring

and managing macro cell tower leases, has offered to pay the City $1.228 million for the rights to

three existing cell tower agreements. In addition, TowerPoint will provide the City with 55% of any
Page 6 of 11

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



new revenues either through a renegotiated lease with the current lessees, or by securing additional
customers on the tower. Under the terms of the agreement, TowerPoint would also absorb any rent
reductions with no impact to Sierra Madre. Staff is recommending that the City accept the payment
of $1,228 million and make a prepayment to CalPERS for pension obligations.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia expressed that this is a very good contract and asked for an explanation
of the financial benefit and value to the City of the CalPERS pre-payment. Finance Director Konisek
explained that (1) the unfunded liability issue is nationwide, (2) the City strategy, led by City Manager
Engeland, has been to address the CalPERS liability solidly, because it pays dividends received in
terms of cost savings and reduces the unfunded liability, (3) conversely, it increases how well the City
is funded, (4) there are plans pending for City Council consideration that will maintain a high
percentage of funding, (5) because the City is making a lump sum payment at the beginning,
CalPERS is going to offset it, versus a steady stream of payments every year as contributions, (6)
the cost savings is money that Staff does not have to otherwise budget, and (7) there are numerous
benefits to this plan and, to the extent that the City can continue with this plan, the City will get ahead
in many ways.

In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi regarding contingencies in the contract
language, City Attorney Highsmith reported that the contingency has been formally retracted, as of
an hour before today’s CC meeting. She said that the action before CC tonight is to approve (1) the
letter of intent that starts TowerPoint’s due diligence and (2) a resolution delegating the City Manager
the administrative action of signing all of the real property documents as they come forward to close
escrow.

In response to a question by Mayor Harabedian regarding what happens if Sprint were to merge with
T-Mobile, City Attorney Highsmith said that the Sprint lease contract would still remain in effect,
regardless of any possible merger.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed
Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.

Discussion occurred that there was consensus (1) that this is a very good thing for Sierra Madre by
allowing the City to reduce its CalPERS liability for future generations, (2) to execute the letter of
intent with TowerPoint Capital, LLC for the exclusive option to purchase lease interest in wireless
communication sites on City property and (3) to adopt Resolution 19-55 as presented.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia made a motion to (1) execute the letter of intent with TowerPoint Capital,
LLC for the exclusive option to purchase lease interest in wireless communication sites on City
property and (2) adopt Resolution 19-55 as presented.

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachel
Arizmendi and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent:  Council Member Denise Delmar
Abstain:  None

The motion to (1) execute the letter of intent with TowerPoint Capital, LLC for the exclusive option to
purchase lease interest in wireless communication sites on City property and (2) adopt Resolution
19-55 as presented was passed by a vote of four (4) yes and one (1) absent.

Page 7 of 11
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



3. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTING RESOLUTION 19-56 AMENDING THE CITY’S TUITION
REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM AND EDUCATIONAL COSTS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
POLICY

Human Resources Manager Hernandez reported on this item with the recommendation that the City
Council adopt Resolution 19-56 amending the Tuition Reimbursement Program and Educational
Costs Assistance Program Policy to include the following amendments:

e Provides employee eligibility after 24 months of satisfactory City service.

e Retains the tuition reimbursement policy at $10,000, but also implements an Educational
Costs Assistance Program of up to $5,000. The implementation of the Educational Costs
Assistance Program is intended to provide an advance payment for employees who are not
otherwise able to pay for tuition or other eligible costs related to enroliment.

¢ Allows for reimbursement at the chosen institution not to exceed $10,000, instead of capping
at the California State University tuition rate.

¢ Allows reimbursement based on receiving credit for completion of approved course(s) instead
of reimbursement based on grade received.

o Establishes repayment for the Educational Costs Assistance Program if an employee resigns
or retires within two years or is not an employee of the City for at least two years from the date
the assistance is received.

Per the Staff Report dated 10-22-19, the purpose of the Tuition Reimbursement Program and
Educational Costs Assistance Program is to provide quality services for its residents by encouraging
employee development by sharing the expense of approved courses and educational programs.
Tuition reimbursement assists employees in broadening their knowledge of their current position or
preparing them for possible promotional opportunities within the City.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

In response to a question by Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia regarding how the $10,000 cap was
determined, HR Director Hernandez said that (1) the $!0,000 cap was discussed, along with an
assistance program to up front the money for employee who may have potential barriers to starting,
(2) the loan is forgiven after the individual graduates and continues with City employment for at least
two years from the date that assistance is received, and (3) it becomes $15,000 for employees who
take full advantage of the program.

In response to a question by Mayor Harabedian as to why eligibility for this program was changed
from 18 months to 24 months, HR Manager Hernandez said that Staff determined that (1) 18 months
was not sufficient time to evaluate an employee’s commitment and organizational benefit and (2) 24
months made more sense.

In response to a question by Mayor Harabedian as to what triggers payback if the employee leaves
City employment before 24 months of the assistance HR Director Hernandez stated that the two
years begins when the employee receives the first $1 of any tuition assistance.

In response to a question by Council Member Goss regarding how neighboring cities handle this
issue, HR Manager Hernandez said that most neighboring cities have tuition reimbursement/
assistance programs of amounts between $5,000 to $20,000, depending on the size of the

Page 8 of 11
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



municipality, with criteria similar to Sierra Madre. He stated that Staff is unaware of any city that
offers an Educational Costs Assistance Program.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed
Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.

Discussion occurred that there was consensus to approve the adoption of Resolution 19-56 as
presented.

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to adopt Resolution 19-56 as presented.

Council Member Goss seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachel
Arizmendi and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent: Council Member Denise Delmar
Abstain: None

The motion to adopt Resolution 19-56 as presented was passed by a vote of four (4) yes and one (1)
absent.

OPTIONS FOR FILLING CITY COUNCIL VACANCY

Assistant City Clerk Aguilar reported on this item, including that Council Member Delmar submitted
her resignation from the City Council effective 10-23-19, with the recommendation that the City
Council provide Staff with direction. Per the City of Sierra Madre Municipal Code, the 60-day clock
starts tomorrow for the City Council to determine how it wishes to proceed as follows: (1) to call a
special election for the purpose of filling the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term of the
vacant City Council seat, (2) consider the appointment of a previous mayor to fill the seat or allow the
seat to remain vacant until the special election, or (3) consider making changes to the current
process/ordinance.

Alternatives provided were as follows:

e The Council may direct Staff to return to the next meeting with an Urgency Ordinance
repealing Ordinance 1333 and follow the procedures set forth in California Government Code
— GOV Section 36512.

e The Council may choose to not repeal Ordinance 1333 and direct Staff to return to a future
meeting with direction regarding the selection process for the Council Member vacancy.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

In response to a question by Council Member Goss regarding the process to pick someone to fill the
position that was not a former mayor, Asst. City Clerk Aguilar stated that (1) the City Council would
have to repeal the current ordinance, Ordinance 1333, (2) this could be done at the next City Council
Meeting as an emergency ordinance and not affect the 60-day decision period, and (3) at that time,
the City Council could decide whether to appoint another Sierra Madre resident or leave the position
vacant until November 2020.

Page 9 of 11
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi regarding leaving the position vacant until
November 2020, Asst. City Clerk Aguilar said that the City Council can make that decision and
Ordinance 1333 could remain in effect as is.

In response to a question by Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia regarding the 60-day window and the need to
call for an election, City Attorney Highsmith advised that the City Council has 60 days to decide
whether to call for a Special Election, which could be March 2020 (depending on the timing) or have
the election in November 2020 (next General Election).

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia summarized that the City Council has 60-days to call for a special election,
but that there is no requirement to appoint an individual to fill the position within the 60 days or any
time prior to the special election, to which City Attorney Highsmith expressed agreement.

In response to a question by Mayor Harabedian regarding the difference between Ordinance 1333
and State law, City Attorney Highsmith explained that the only difference is with whom the City
Council can appoint on an interim basis, and the Government Code does not require that the
individual be a former mayor.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed
Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.

Discussion occurred and there was consensus (1) to have the election to fill the remainder of CM
Delmar’s term in November 2020, as a special election in March 2020 is too soon and there is a City
cost savings as well, (2) for the need appoint a replacement, and (3) to do away with the existing
ordinance and eliminate the language requiring the appointment of a former mayor to fill a vacant
Council set.

Mayor Harabedian said that there will be three City Council seats open at the November 2020, one
being to fill the remainder of Council Member’s Delmar term (two-year Council seat) and the Mayor
and Mayor Pro Tem are up for re-election (two four-year Council seats). Assistant City Clerk Aguilar
added that the City Clerk and City Treasurer are also up for re-election in November 2020 and said
that people can only pull papers to apply for one City Council seat, which could be for the two-year
or four-year term.

Assistant City Attorney Highsmith explained that having an emergency ordinance saves 60 days in
the process of appointing a City Council replacement, should the City Council decide to appoint.

City Staff was directed to (1) draft an ordinance to call for a special election to fill CM Delmar’s vacant
position in November 2020, (2) bring back an emergency ordinance to do away with the requirement
to appoint a former mayor, and (3) agendize those items for the first meeting in December 2019 for
City Council discussion and decision.

Mayor Harabedian re-opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian
closed Public Comment.

NEW ITEMS PLACED FOR FUTURE AGENDAS:

Mayor Harabedian asked the members of the City Council if there are any new items for future meeting
agendas. Mayor Harabedian suggested agendizing AB68 and additional dwelling units for a future
meeting.

Page 10 of 11

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



City Attorney Highsmith said that the City will likely need an emergency ordinance to conform with AB68

ADJOURNMENT:

Mayor Harabedian made a motion to adjourn the meeting in honor of Council Member Denise Delmar.

The motion was seconded by Council Member Goss.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachel
Arizmendi and Gene Goss

Noes: None

Absent: Council Member Denise Delmar

Abstain: None

The motion to adjourn was passed by a vote of four (4) yes and one (1) absent.

THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 8:38 p.m. to a
Regular meeting to be held on Tuesday, November 12, 2019, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council
Chambers.

John Harabedian, Mayor
Minutes taken and prepared by:

Sue Spears, City Clerk

Page 11 of 11

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-22-2019



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY

Tuesday, October 8, 2019 - 6:30 pm
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers
232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL:

Mayor John Harabedian called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll.

Present: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members
Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar and Gene Goss

Absent: None

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager
Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney
Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk
James Carlson, Management Analyst
Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works
Miguel Hernandez, Human Resources Manager
Jim Hunt, Interim Police Chief
Christine Smart, City Librarian
Rich Snyder, Fire Captain
Sue Spears, City Clerk

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INSPIRATION:

Council Member Delmar led the Pledge of Allegiance and requested that people get a flu shot by 10-31-
19.

APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA:

Mayor Harabedian asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia moved to approve the agenda as presented.

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss

Noes: None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

Page 1 of 12

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed by a unanimous vote.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Mayor Harabedian asked for the approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of September
24, 2019.

Council Member Arizmendi moved to approve the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of
September 24, 2019 as presented.

Council Member Delmar seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members Council
Member Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar and Gene Goss

Noes: None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

The motion to approve the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of September 24, 2019 as
presented was passed by a unanimous vote.

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS:

A.

Mayor John Harabedian reported that the Friends of the Sierra Madre Library wine tasting event was
very successful.

Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia reported that he attended the Alverno Heights Academy field
renovation dedication and that it is beautiful.

Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi reported that there will be a PUSD Special Board Meeting on
10-10-19 to consider school closures, with the closing of Sierra Madre Middle School as one of the
scenarios and encouraged people to attend and be vocal in support of keeping Sierra Madre Middle
School open.

Council Member Denise Delmar did not make a report.

Council Member Gene Goss (1) encouraged people to send an email or letter to PUSD Board
Member Larry Torres in support of keeping Sierra Madre Middle School open and (2) commended
the Friends of the Sierra Madre Library for a wonderful wine tasting event.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS:

Mayor Harabedian opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda.

¢ Jo Ann Williams, Sierra Madre, (1) reported on the many activities of the Senior Community

Commission, including the Community Resources Brochure and Senior Moments, (2) requested
expanded/improved office space for the Community Services Department staff, (3) thanked
Community Services Department staff, Rosemary Garcia, Lawren Heinz, Clarissa Lowe, and
Rebecca Silva, for their dedication in doing “the really hard work” to support the activities of the
Senior Community Commission, and (4) expressed special thanks to Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia,

Page 2 of 12
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



in his role as City Council liaison to the Senior Community Commission, for providing advice and
answering questions.

Vickere Murphy, Office of State Senator Anthony J. Portantino, invited the public to attend the
Mosquito Forum on 10-19-19, from 2:00 — 4:00 p.m. @ the Pasadena City College Community
Education Center.

Interim Police Chief Jim Hunt, City of Sierra Madre, reported that (1) this is “Pink Patch Month”
(with SMPD officers wearing pink patches on their uniforms) to raise awareness for breast cancer
research, (2) monies raised go to the City of Hope, which does tremendous work in this field, (3)
this initiative began in 2015 with Seal Beach PD and has expanded to law enforcement agencies
throughout LA County and beyond, expanded to now include 390 agencies across the United
States and three foreign country’s agencies patrticipating as well, and (4) in the last three years,
“Pink Patch Month” has raised over $1,000,000 in LA County alone the City of Hope for breast
cancer research, (5) the SMPD will have patches available for sale for $10, key chains for $5, and
can accept donations, with all proceeds going directly to the City of Hope.

Mayor Harabedian asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on items not on the agenda.
Seeing no one come forward, Mayor Harabedian closed Public Comment.

AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:

1. CONSENT CALENDAR

City Clerk Spears gave the following reports under the Consent Calendar:

a)

b)

AWARD THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT TO SA ASSOCIATES FOR THE
DESIGN OF THE 2020 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT - Recommendation to award
a professional services contract to SA Associates for water main replacement design in the
amount of $105,000 and authorize the City Manager or his designee to execute the Professional
Services Agreement with said firm.

CONSIDERATION OF NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE
- Recommendation that the City Council approve the cancellation of the regular City Council
meetings on November 26, 2019 and December 24, 2019 and direct staff to pay all necessary
expenses during that time.

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-53 APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS - It is recommended
that the City Council approve Resolution 19-53 for approval of payment of City warrants in an
aggregate amount of $685,273.12; Library warrants in an aggregate amount of $5,272.91; and
payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $353,696.90 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on Consent Items la — 1c.
Council Members did not ask any questions.

Mayor Harabedian opened the meeting for Public Comment on the Consent Items. Seeing no one,
Mayor Harabedian closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.
No additional discussion occurred.

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to approve Consent ltems 1la — 1c as presented.

Council Member Goss seconded the motion.

Page 3 of 12

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



Ayes:

Noes:
Absent:
Abstain:

Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss

None

None

None

The motion to approve Consent Items 1la — 1c as presented was passed by a unanimous vote.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

2a. 2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 1416

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Hearing.

James

Wildan, Contract Building Official, reported on this item with the recommendation that the

City Council introduce, for first reading by title only, Ordinance 1416, pursuant to the 2019 California
Building Standards Code amendments, with such amendments taking place every three years, as
follows:

Adoption of the California Building Code with specific amendments applicable to the City of
Sierra Madre.

Adoption of the California Residential Code with specific amendments applicable to the City
of Sierra Madre.

Adoption of the California Mechanical Code with specific amendments applicable to the City
of Sierra Madre.

Adoption of the California Electrical Code with specific amendments applicable to the City of
Sierra Madre.

Adoption of the California Plumbing Code with specific amendments applicable to the City of
Sierra Madre.

Adoption of the 2019 International Existing Building Code.

Adoption of the California Green Building Code with specific amendments applicable to the
City of Sierra Madre.

Adoption of the California Energy Code with specific amendments applicable to the City of
Sierra Madre.

Adoption of the 2019 California Referenced Standards Code.

Continuance of previous code.

Enforceability of codes.

Maodifications of California Building Code.

Severability.

Effective Date.

CEQA exemption.

Publication.

Certification.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

Mr. Wildan responded to Council Member questions as follows:

Any concerns/red flags? - The item of most interest was the Energy Code amendment in
which the State is now requiring that all new single-family dwellings permitted after January
1, 2020, must have solar voltaic systems included, the only exception being those who
applied for Plan Check prior to 1-1-20.

Are there any new amendments? — Other than the Energy Code, there are no major changes.

Page 4 of 12

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed
Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. No additional discussion
occurred.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia made a motion to introduce Ordinance 1416 for first reading by title only.

Council Member Delmar seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachel
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent: None
Abstain:  None

The motion to introduce Ordinance 1416 for first reading by title only was passed by a unanimous
vote.

2b. 2019 FIRE CODE ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 1417

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Hearing.

Fire Captain Snyder reported on this item with the recommendation that the City Council introduce,
for first reading by title only, Ordinance 1417, pursuant to the 2019 California Fire Code
amendments. He said that this is similar to the changes in the California Building Code amendments,
with the only significant changes being (1) adding an alternative design for fire sprinklers to make it
easier and cost effective for residential fire sprinklers and (2) modifying fire sprinklers in trust attics,
with a little less restriction.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. City Council
Members did not ask any questions.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed
Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. No discussion occurred.

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to approve Ordinance 1417 for first reading by title only.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachel
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent: None
Abstain: None

The motion to approve Ordinance 1417 for first reading by title only was passed by a unanimous
vote.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

3a. DISCUSSION — CONSIDERATION OF APPOINTMENT TO FILL A VACANCY ON THE SENIOR
COMMUNITY COMMISSION

Page 5 of 12
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



3b.

Assistant City Clerk Aguilar reported on this item regarding the appointment to the Senior Community
Commission to fill the current full-term vacancy (since June 2019) from the one application received
from Jacquie Pergola.

Mayor Harabedian invited Ms. Pergola to speak. Ms. Pergola expressed appreciation for the
opportunity to serve on the Senior Community Commission and she looks forward to bringing in a lot
of new ideas and leadership.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia made a motion to recommend the appointment of Jacquie Pergola to the
Senior Community Commission to fill the vacancy for a term ending 6-30-24.

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent: None
Abstain: None

The motion to recommend the appointment of Jacquie Pergola to the Senior Community Commission
to fill the vacancy for a term ending 6-30-24 was passed by a unanimous vote.

DISCUSSION - AUTHORIZATION TO PAY EXPENDITURES RELATED TO THE NOVEMBER 5,
2019 SPECIAL ELECTION

Assistant City Clerk Aguilar reported on this item with recommendation that the City Council approve
an increase to the fiscal year 2019-2020 budget to include estimated expenditures in the amount of
$110,000 related to the November 5, 2019 Special Election for Citizen’s Initiative Measure S, the only
item on the ballot.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

In response to a question by Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia as to whether the City has sufficient funds to
include this in the budget, City Manager Engeland said that, if approved, the City will be able to cover
the costs involved.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment.

o Pat Alcorn, Sierra Madre, (1) reiterated that Measure S is a citizen’s initiative, with 10 — 15
people going door to door, Kersting Court, Downtown Sierra Madre, and community
organizations to provide information and obtain sufficient signatures to qualify for the ballot,
(2) thanked the City Council for approving the Special Election, and (3) encouraged people
to vote “Yeson S.”

e Gary Hood, Sierra Madre, (1) also thanked the City Council for approving these funds, (2)
said that November 5™ is an important day to vote in Sierra Madre, (3) stated that Measure
S is important to the community, as it will bring 100% of the increased sales tax revenue,
estimated to be about $200,000 annually, to the City’'s General Fund, (4) reported that there
will be “Yes on S” yard signs posted around town to remind everyone to vote, and (5)
encouraged people to get out and vote “Yes on S”:

Page 6 of 12

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



3c.

Mayor Harabedian asked if anyone else would like to speak on this item. Seeing no one, Mayor
Harabedian closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia thanked and expressed appreciation to Ms. Alcorn and Mr. Hood for their
efforts in driving this citizen’s initiative.

Mayor Harabedian (1) stressed the importance of people getting out to vote on this measure and
getting involved and (2) expressed anticipation to hear more information on Measure S from the
Citizen’s Initiative Group.

Council Member Goss made a motion to approve an increase to the fiscal year 2019-2020 budget to
include estimated expenditures in the amount of $110,000 related to the November 5, 2019 Special
Election.

Council Member Delmar second the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent: None
Abstain: None

The motion to approve an increase to the fiscal year 2019-2020 budget to include estimated
expenditures in the amount of $110,000 related to the November 5, 2019 Special Election was passed
by a unanimous vote.

DISCUSSION - INTERCONNECTION WHEELING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF
ARCADIA AND THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

City Manager Engeland reported on this item with the recommendation that the City Council approve
the interconnection wheeling agreement between the City of Arcadia and the City of Sierra Madre
and authorize staff to work with the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District and Arcadia on the
joint establishment, location, and operation of a well in the main basin.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

City Manager Engeland or Public Works Director Cimino responded to Council Member questions as
follows:

¢ Isthe agreement about the well? - This agreement is not about the well, but a precursor to it,
as it is a standard wheeling agreement and is not binding upon either Sierra Madre or Arcadia
for the joint operation of the well.

o Is the City saving money by having Arcadia deliver water, instead of getting it from the
Metropolitan Water District - (1) the goal of the joint well is to produce 2,000 acre feet of water,
as an estimate and could be more or less, (2) the main benefit is that the water would be San
Gabriel Main Basin water that can go directly into our system, and (3) the financial advantages
are to the SGVM Water District itself.

e |[s this is on a yearly or every time we need water basis, which could be an administrative
issue - It would be done initially before the City accepts any water for the first time and

Page 7 of 12

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



thereafter, within a reasonable timeframe, but would probably not be an annual undertaking
and would continue for a long time.

o Why this is less expensive for the SGVM Water District? - It is the Water District that is
currently supplying the 2 for 1 deal and, under this proposed agreement, with Sierra Madre
importing water from Arcadia. This gives the SGVM Water District the ability to re-negotiate
with the Metropolitan Water District to make it more of a water delivery agreement, as opposed
to the 2 for 1. They are paying in water and we are paying in money. Water is much more
valuable, especially when it is scarce.

o Regarding the delivery of treated water - This water is the same water that is going through
the Arcadia distribution system now, so it is Arcadia’s treated water as they treat it with filtration
and chlorination.

Mayor Harabedian invited Miles Prince, SGV Municipal Water District representative, to address the
City Council. Mr. Prince concurred with City Manager Engeland’s responses and said (1) that
everyone at the SGVM Water District is super excited that Sierra Madre negotiated this agreement
that benefits the SGVMWD, (2) the number one concern continues to be the supply of water and
water is money, (3) this is cheaper because the current agreement is not sustainable and there is a
need to diversity water supply, and (4) this is Main Basin water and, for the SGVMWD, this is a huge
deal, as providing Main Basin water to Sierra Madre has been a problem for quite some time.

In response to a question by Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia regarding the next steps to move ahead with
the well project, Mr. Prince stated that it is better that the Sierra Madre City Council take action first
to approve the authorization to begin work toward the joint well and then it would be brought forward
to the SGVMWD Board and he thinks that the Board would take some action of support for the project
and the Board would look for a report with hard numbers to consider.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment. Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed
Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.

Discussion occurred and there was consensus (1) that this is an exciting project that has been a long
time in coming, (2) to express thanks and good job to City Manager Engeland, Public Works Director
Cimino, Utilities Services Director Reynoso, Mr. Prince, and the SGVMWD General Manager for all
the work and leadership on this agreement, and (3) to support approval of the interconnection
wheeling agreement between the City of Arcadia and the City of Sierra Madre.

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia made a motion to (1) approve the interconnection wheeling agreement
between the City of Arcadia and the City of Sierra Madre as presented and (2) authorize Staff to move
forward with pursuing the well.

Council Member Goss seconded the motion.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss
Noes: None

Absent: None
Abstain: None

Page 8 of 12
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



3d

The motion to (1) approve the interconnection wheeling agreement between the City of Arcadia and
the City of Sierra Madre as presented and (2) authorize Staff to move forward with pursuing the well
was passed by a unanimous vote.

.MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION STUDY

City Manager Engeland reported on this item with the recommendation that the City Council discuss
and provide direction. The PowerPoint, titled “Compensation Discussion”, contained the following
topics:

e Background — Staff directed to complete management compensation survey in December
2018 and include peer cities, private sector, non-profit, and other relevant marketplace data.

e Terms — Minimum Rate of Pay, Maximum Rate of Pay, Midrange, Midpoint, Percent of
Market, and Increase at Midpoint.

e Survey Process — Survey market to establish peer cities through “similarity scores”,
determine competitive market midpoint and compare to Sierra Madre midrange of pay, and
calculate current percent of market Sierra Madre pays.

o Process, Peer Cities — Most similar cities were San Marino (5.5), Signal Hill (5), and South
Pasadena (4).

e Process, Other Sectors — Position comparison for public, private, and non-profit salaries for
Community Svcs. Manager, Finance Director, and Human Resources Manager. Public
sector only for Police Chief and Public and contracted services for Public Works Director.

e Process, Calculate Market Rate — Listed Current Range and Market Range Average,
Minimum, midrange, and Maximum, and Percent of Market — current Midpoint as a
percentage.

e Discussion Point — Option 1 — Make no changes to pay range, determine current range is
compatible with Sierra Madre Compensation Philosophy.

o Discussion Point — Option 2 — Set Market Rate based on Midpoint of Market (ex. 85%) —
Would be more of a maintenance situation.

e Discussion Point — Option 3 — Do not set Market Rate, but increase range based on Market
Data (ex. 2 step range increases). — Gives the City Council more control.

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.

Council Member Goss prefaced his question by stating that (1) Sierra Madre has a very high quality
management team, person by person, (2) those employee remain based on what the City is currently
paying, and (3) he would like to keep them and attract other people at least as good as them.

City Manager Engeland responded to Council Member questions as follows:

o Which peer cities did South Pasadena chose? — Was unsure of South Pasadena’s process.

Page 9 of 12
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



An assessment as to whether the City needs to pay more to attract and keep the kinds of
people we have right now - In the past two years, (1) the people the City tends to loose are
those who have been with the City awhile, are very talented, provide a very high quality work
performance for the City, and they go somewhere else that pays more, (2) the people that
replace them tend to have fewer qualifications and/or less of a background in the experience
the City is looking for, (3) the philosophy of Sierra Madre that City Manager Engeland has
taken is to invest in people early and probably give them positions and titles before they are
guite ready and then give them a lot of support so that they can perform to the level that they
do, (4) it is a model that has proven successful, (5) however he has had recent conversations
with two members of the management team who turned down jobs that would have paid them
$35,000 more annually, which is something to consider and could change, making retention
more difficult, and (6) the City has been successful in replacing people that it loses, but the
new people tend to need more training, more guidance, more direction, and more time to
become fully functional in their role.

Why does the City use midpoint, instead of maximum and compare that? (1) the City
compared midpoint to midpoint so the comparison would not matter if the rate of pay changed
and the percentage would be the same, (2) the City pays in ranges, as opposed to one point,
and (3) employees’ pay across the board is dependent mostly on performance, but also on
the amount of time with the City.

What is the impetus for this? There are management position where the City is vulnerable
right now and into the future because (1) we have directors constantly being recruited for other
cities, making retention more difficult and (2) with some directors spending their career here,
the City gets a discount now, but when they retire or otherwise leave, it will be nearly
impossible to hire someone with the same skill set at the current pay range.

Council Member Delmar added that, when doing a compensation analysis, you do not look at
the people, but look at the position only and what the skills/requirements are and that is why
you always go with the midpoint, as that is the industry standard.

Does the City look at internal equity as well? — Yes, the City does because (in addition to
Council direction in 2018 and bringing this forward) (1) the management group has not
received a COLA or the same pay increases given to other employees for the last four years,
(2) the reason being that, when City Manager Engeland was hired four years ago, all of the
management team were new directors and he was not quite sure how individuals would
perform combined with how the City was going to perform, (3) the internal equity piece is
becoming more pressing in that the City has people in supervisory positions that are now
making more than those in management positions, and (4) it is not just the compression, but
there is also equity to consider as well.

Are adjustments ever made for years of service for new hires — Yes, City Manager Engeland
had that very conversation as late as this afternoon with the Interim Police Chief.

What is the process following a City Council decision and full implementation - (1) this is
separate and apart from any union agreements, as the positions being discussed are
unrepresented management positions, (2) this is not asking to give management raises
across the board, because the City does pay for performance, (3) if the range is increased,
the City Council should not expect that all of the directors/managers would have an automatic
pay increase, as they still have to perform and move through the process, and (4) the City
Council is approving a range and any raise is under the purview of the City Manager.
Page 10 of 12

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



Discussion occurred and comments included the following: (1) to commend City Staff on the quality
of the compensation analysis, (2) to thank our City Manager and Staff for creating a positive work
environment, (3) that it is encouraging that the City has good employees, in spite of the fact that they
are being paid less than what the market is showing as comparable, (4) that there is a need to be
flexible, with consideration of the need to retain good employees, (5) the City Council wants to make
sure that its employees are being treated fairly, (6) there is a need to provide the City Manager with
the right tools to manage the staff appropriately and in the interest of Sierra Madre, (7) was gratified
that the midpoints are pretty close, as midpoint is always the best, in that it is fair and avoids potential
lawsuits for unfairness, internal equity, equal pay, and equal jobs, (8) the City is in a financially stable
market now, with compensation settling down over the last 5-6 years, and (9) sometimes it is not so
much the dollars, but that employees want to feel valued.

Council Members concurred that that there is a need to make changes to the management team pay
ranges, but expressed differing opinions and preferences for Option #2 and Option #3, as the same
midpoint of market across all management positions could be unnecessarily high for some positions
and low for others and desired to know which the City Manager preferred.

City Manager Engeland added that, in setting a market midpoint, the concern would be that, for some
positions, it would be too low and other positions would be too high, but it does address the internal
equity piece and it does address the maintenance piece. He expressed that the decision is the City
Council’'s to make and that Staff can inform City Council of the benefits and drawbacks of either
approach, as there are benefits in both flexibility and certainty.

City Attorney Highsmith advised that the agenda items before City Council tonigh is (1) a discussion
and (2) to provide guidance to the City Manager, who will then later take City Council direction, look
at everything bring it back to the City Council, probably first in Closed Session and ultimately Open
Session with recommendations and the cost of any pay adjustments. She added that City Council is
not being asked to set an official policy now and no final decision needs to be made tonight.

Direction was provided to the City Manager to calculate Option #2 and Option #3 for each
management position and bring those back for City Council discussion and approval.

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment.

e Gary Hood, Sierra Madre, recommended that the City create an incentive program for
employees who suggest innovations that save the City money.

Mayor Harabedian asked if anyone else would like to speak on this item. Seeing no one, Mayor
Harabedian closed Public Comment on this item.

NEW ITEMS PLACED FOR FUTURE AGENDAS:

Mayor Harabedian asked the members of the City Council if there are any new items for future meeting
agendas. No new items were suggested.

Under New Business - Council Member Delmar announced that she is leaving the City Council because
she will be moving to Yorba Linda at the end of the month, with her last City Council Meeting being on
October 22, 2019.

ADJOURNMENT:

Page 11 of 12
Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



Mayor Harabedian asked for a motion to adjourn.
Council Member Goss made a motion to adjourn the meeting.

The motion was seconded by Council Member Delmar.

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle
Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss

Noes: None

Absent: None

Abstain: None
The motion to adjourn was passed by a unanimous vote.
THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 8:11 p.m.to a

Regular meeting to be held on Tuesday, October 22, 2019, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council
Chambers.

John Harabedian, Mayor
Minutes taken and prepared by:

Sue Spears, City Clerk

Page 12 of 12

Sierra Madre City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes 10-8-2019



John Harabedian, Mayor

John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem
Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

City of Sierra Madre — suespears ciry ciek
Michael Amerio City Treasurer
Agenda Report

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Gabe Engeland, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Clare Lin, Associate Planner

REVIEWED BY: Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning & Community Preservation
DATE: November 12, 2019

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING

ELEMENT UPDATE 2021-2029

STAFE RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Alternative No. 1, to enter into a professional services agreement
with Karen Warner Associates and authorize the City Manager to execute the
contract to prepare the City’s 2021-2029 Housing Element Update.

ALTERNATIVES
1. Enterinto a professional services contract with Karen Warner Associates and
authorize the City Manager to execute the contract in a form acceptable to
the City Attorney.

2. Prepare additional request for proposal to solicit bids from other consulting
firms providing similar contract services.

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with
Karen Warner Associates (KWA) to prepare the 2021-2029 Housing Element
Update for the City of Sierra Madre under the direction of the Director of Planning
and Community Preservation. For the past cycles, KWA has been under contract
with the City to provide housing element updates and throughout this duration has
demonstrated the range of expertise necessary to bring compliance with the City
adopted housing element.

On August 22, 2019, staff sent out a Request for Proposal (RFP) to seek qualified
consultants to prepare the 6" Cycle Housing Element Update. There were five
housing policy consultants that received the RFP, three declined to submit a
proposal, and two responded with a proposal. Staff conducted phone interviews with
KWA and Infrastructure Engineers (IF). Both have extensive housing policy
experience and are well-versed on recent State law affecting the current housing



Page 2 of 4

element update cycle. Based on experience and knowledge of the Sierra Madre
community, staff has selected KWA.

Staff recommends that the City Council award contract services with KWA and
authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement to prepare
the City’s 2021-2029 Housing Element Update.

ANALYSIS

Karen Warner Associates (KWA) has a strong understanding of the Sierra Madre
community and develop a focused approach since she prepared the 2001, 2008, and
2014 Housing Element for the City. The proposed 15-month schedule, beginning in
January 2020, anticipates the State Housing and Community Development (HCD)
review of a draft element by January 2021, and the public hearings and adoption by
April 2021. The total project cost is estimated at $82,930.00.

KWA'’s proposed scope of work has identified that cost efficiencies can be realized
because KWA has maintained much of the data from the 2014 Housing Element, and
that further cost efficiencies can be realized by utilizing Planning and Community
Preservation staff to compile the program accomplishments from the 2014 Housing
Element, identify a new potential sites inventory, and identify new units since the last
Element adoption by a research of building permits records, thereby reducing
consultant hours on these work tasks.

Infrastructures Engineers, Inc. has extensive experience as well, as they are
currently preparing housing element updates for City of Los Angeles, City of Whittier,
and other surrounding cities. Their proposed 12-month schedule anticipates the HCD
review of a draft element by December 2020. The total project cost is estimated at
$83,980.00, $1,050 greater than KWA'’s cost estimate.

Kimley-
Horn Willdan MIG
Infrastructure (Declined | (Declined | (Declined
Consulting Firm Karen Warner Engineers RFP) RFP) RFP)

TOTAL COST $82,930 $83,980

Firm prepared four
housing element

Firm prepared housing updates

elements for other 14
Cities, and prior 3 cycles
of housing element for
Sierra Madre

QUALITY OF
PRODUCT




Page 3 0of 4

Kimley-
Horn Willdan MIG
Infrastructure (Declined | (Declined | (Declined
Consulting Firm Karen Warner Engineers RFP) RFP) RFP)

TUR’\.IF'?‘SSUND 14 months estimated 12 Months minimum
STAFF staff of 4 & city staff staff of 6
RESOURCES collaboration
CEQA Initial Study / Mitigated EIR
COMPLETION Negative Declaration

DELIVERABLES

Community Workshop
Materials

PC/CC Study Session
Materials

PC/CC Public Hearing
Materials

Administrative Draft
Housing Element
Revised Administrative
Draft Housing Element for
PC/CC

Public/HCD Review Draft
Housing Element

Memo Identifying changes
to Draft Element in
response to HCD

Public Hearing draft
Housing Element

Final Approved Housing
Element

Administrative Draft IS-
ND

Public Review Draft IS-
ND

Final IS-ND

Research & Analysis
Administrative Draft
Housing Element
Public Review Draft
Housing Element
Administrative Final
Housing Element
Final Housing Element
CEQA Required
Documents

State Certification of
2021-2029 Housing
Element from HCD

FINANCIAL REVIEW/SOURCE OF FUNDING

The costs to conduct the Housing Element update will be borne by the City. Funds in
the amount of $90,000 have been set aside in the City’s fiscal year 2019/2020 budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL (CEQA)

The Housing Element is subject to review in compliance with CEQA requirements.

PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS

This item has been noticed though the regular agenda notification process. Copies of
the report are available via the City’s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com, at the City

Hall public counter, and the Sierra Madre Public Library.



http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/

Page 4 of 4

Attachments (3):

1. Professional Services Agreement
2. Exhibit B: KWA Proposal
3. Exhibit C: RFP — City of Sierra Madre Housing Element Update



ATTACHMENT A

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES

(City of Sierra Madre/ Karen Warner Associates)

1. IDENTIFICATION

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and

between the City of Sierra Madre, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and Karen Warner
Associates a California corporation (“Consultant”).

2. RECITALS

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

City has determined that it requires Consultant to provide professional services:
Under the direction of the Director of Planning and Community Preservation,
Consultant to prepare a Soft Story Building Program including preparation of
applicable ordinances, preparation and sending compliance letters to all property
owners and follow up inspections, plan checks, permits, and inspection of
abatement permits and preparation of final compliance report.

Consultant represents that it is fully qualified to perform such professional services
by virtue of its experience and the training, education and expertise of its principals
and employees. Consultant further represents that it is willing to accept
responsibility for performing such services in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Consultant represents that it has no known relationships with third parties, City
Council members, or employees of City which would (1) present a conflict of
interest with the rendering of services under this Agreement under Government
Code Section 1090, the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et
seq.), or other applicable law, (2) prevent Consultant from performing the terms of
this Agreement, or (3) present a significant opportunity for the disclosure of
confidential information.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein
contained, City and Consultant agree as follows:

3. DEFINITIONS

3.1. “Scope of Services”: Such professional services as are set forth in Consultant’s Scope of
Services attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.

3.2. “Agreement Administrator”: The Agreement Administrator for this project is Vincent
Gonzalez, Director of Planning & Community Preservation. The Agreement Administrator
shall be the principal point of contact at the City for this project. All services under this

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 1 of 15

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



Agreement shall be performed at the request of the Agreement Administrator. The Agreement
Administrator will establish the timetable for completion of services and any interim
milestones. City reserves the right to change this designation upon written notice to
Consultant.

3.3. “Approved Fee Schedule”: Consultant’s compensation rates are set forth in the fee schedule
attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. This fee schedule shall
remain in effect for the duration of this Agreement unless modified in writing by mutual
agreement of the parties.

3.4. “Commencement Date”: January __, 2020.

3.5. “Termination Date: April __, 2021.

4. TERM

The term of this Agreement shall commence at 12:00 a.m. on the Commencement Date and
shall expire at 11:59 p.m. on the Termination Date unless extended by written agreement of the
parties or terminated earlier under Section 16 (“Termination”) below. Consultant may request
extensions of time to perform the services required hereunder. Such extensions shall be effective
if authorized in advance by City in writing and incorporated in written amendments to this
Agreement.

5. CONSULTANT’S DUTIES

5.1.  Services. Consultant shall perform the services identified in the Scope of Services. City
shall have the right to request, in writing, changes in the Scope of Services. Any such
changes mutually agreed upon by the parties, and any corresponding increase or
decrease in compensation, shall be incorporated by written amendment to this
Agreement.

5.2.  Coordination with City. In performing services under this Agreement, Consultant
shall coordinate all contact with City through its Agreement Administrator.

5.3. Budgetary Notification. Consultant shall notify the Agreement Administrator, in
writing, when fees and expenses incurred under this Agreement have reached eighty
percent (80%) of the Maximum Amount. Consultant shall concurrently inform the
Agreement Administrator, in writing, of Consultant’s estimate of total expenditures
required to complete its current assignments before proceeding, when the remaining
work on such assignments would exceed the Maximum Amount.

5.4. Professional Standards. Consultant shall perform all work to the standards of
Consultant’s profession and in a manner reasonably satisfactory to City. Consultant
shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance with all local, state, and federal
laws, rules, and regulations in any manner affecting the performance of this Agreement,
including all Cal/lOSHA requirements, the conflict of interest provisions of

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 2 of 15
APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

Government Code § 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code § 81000 et
seq.).

Avoid Conflicts. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall not perform any
work for another person or entity for whom Consultant was not working at the
Commencement Date if such work would present a conflict interfering with
performance under this Agreement. However, City may consent in writing to
Consultant’s performance of such work.

Appropriate Personnel. Consultant has, or will secure at its own expense, all
personnel required to perform the services identified in the Scope of Services. All such
services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel
engaged in the work shall be qualified to perform such services Vincent Gonzalez shall
be Consultant’s project administrator and shall have direct responsibility for
management of Consultant’s performance under this Agreement. No change shall be
made in Consultant’s project administrator without City’s prior written consent.

Substitution of Personnel. Any persons named in the proposal or Scope of Services
constitutes a promise to the City that those persons will perform and coordinate their
respective services under this Agreement. Should one or more of such personnel
become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of at least equal
competence upon written approval of City. If City and Consultant cannot agree as to
the substitution of key personnel, City may terminate this Agreement for cause.

Permits and Approvals. Consultant shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense, all
permits and regulatory approvals necessary for Consultant’s performance of this
Agreement. This includes, but shall not be limited to, professional licenses,
encroachment permits and building and safety permits and inspections.

Notification of Organizational Changes. Consultant shall notify the Agreement
Administrator, in writing, of any change in name, ownership or control of Consultant’s
firm or of any subcontractor. Change of ownership or control of Consultant’s firm may
require an amendment to this Agreement.

Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices,
vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating to
charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged to City under this
Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law,
from the date of final payment to Consultant under this Agreement. All such documents
shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular
business hours, upon oral or written request of City. In addition, pursuant to
Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this
Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars, all such documents and this Agreement shall
be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of City or
as part of any audit of City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this
Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 3 of 15

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



6. SUBCONTRACTING

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

General Prohibition. This Agreement covers professional services of a specific and
unique nature. Except as otherwise provided herein, Consultant shall not assign or
transfer its interest in this Agreement or subcontract any services to be performed
without amending this Agreement.

Consultant Responsible. Consultant shall be responsible to City for all services to be
performed under this Agreement.

Identification in Fee Schedule. All subcontractors shall be specifically listed and their
billing rates identified in the Approved Fee Schedule, Exhibit B. Any changes must be
approved by the Agreement Administrator in writing as an amendment to this
Agreement.

Compensation for Subcontractors. City shall pay Consultant for work performed by
its subcontractors, if any, only at Consultant’s actual cost plus an approved mark-up as
set forth in the Approved Fee Schedule, Exhibit B. Consultant shall be liable and
accountable for any and all payments, compensation, and federal and state taxes to all
subcontractors performing services under this Agreement. City shall not be liable for
any payment, compensation, or federal and state taxes for any subcontractors.

7. COMPENSATION

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

74.

General. City agrees to compensate Consultant for the services provided under this
Agreement, and Consultant agrees to accept payment in accordance with the Fee Schedule
in full satisfaction for such services.

Invoices. Consultant shall submit to City an invoice, on a monthly basis or as otherwise
agreed to by the Agreement Administrator, for services performed pursuant to this
Agreement. Each invoice shall identify the Maximum Amount, the services rendered
during the billing period, the amount due for the invoice, and the total amount previously
invoiced. All labor charges shall be itemized by employee name and classification/position
with the firm, the corresponding hourly rate, hours worked, a description of each labor
charge, and the total amount due for labor charges.

Taxes. City shall not withhold applicable taxes or other payroll deductions from payments
made to Consultant except as otherwise required by law. Consultant shall be solely
responsible for calculating, withholding, and paying all taxes.

Disputes. The parties agree to meet and confer at mutually agreeable times to resolve any
disputed amounts contained in an invoice submitted by Consultant.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 4 of 15

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



7.5. Additional Work. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any expenses incurred for work
performed outside the Scope of Services unless prior written approval is given by the City
through a fully executed written amendment. Consultant shall not undertake any such
work without prior written approval of the City.

7.6. City Satisfaction as Precondition to Payment. Notwithstanding any other terms of this
Agreement, no payments shall be made to Consultant until City is satisfied that the
services are satisfactory.

7.7. Right to Withhold Payments. If Consultant fails to provide a deposit or promptly satisfy
an indemnity obligation described in Section 11, City shall have the right to withhold
payments under this Agreement to offset that amount.

8. PREVAILING WAGES

Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq.,
and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 16000, et
seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing wage rates
and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and
“maintenance” projects. Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, tis
elected officials, officers, employees, and agents free and harmless form any claim or
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure of Consultant to comply with the
Prevailing Wage Laws.

9. OWNERSHIP OF WRITTEN PRODUCTS

All reports, documents or other written material (“written products” herein) developed
by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement shall be and remain the property
of City without restriction or limitation upon its use or dissemination by City except as
provided by law. Consultant may take and retain copies of such written products as
desired, but no such written products shall be the subject of a copyright application by
Consultant.

10. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

10.1. General. Consultant is, and shall at all times remain as to City, a wholly independent
contractor.

10.2. No Agent Authority. Consultant shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation, or
liability on behalf of City or otherwise to act on behalf of City as an agent. Neither City
nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of
Consultant’s employees, except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not
represent that it is, or that any of its agents or employees are, in any manner employees
of City.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 5 of 15
APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



10.3. Independent Contractor Status. Under no circumstances shall Consultant or its
employees look to the City as an employer. Consultant shall not be entitled to any
benefits. City makes no representation as to the effect of this independent contractor
relationship on Consultant’s previously earned California Public Employees
Retirement System (“CalPERS”) retirement benefits, if any, and Consultant
specifically assumes the responsibility for making such a determination. Consultant
shall be responsible for all reports and obligations including, but not limited to: social
security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance,
and workers’ compensation, and other applicable federal and state taxes.

10.4. Indemnification of CalPERS Determination. In the event that Consultant or any
employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant providing services under this
Agreement claims or is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or CalPERS to
be eligible for enrollment in CalPERS as an employee of the City, Consultant shall
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or
employer contributions for CalPERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees,
agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on
such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of City.

11. INDEMNIFICATION

11.1 Definitions. For purposes of this Section 11, “Consultant” shall include Consultant, its
officers, employees, servants, agents, or subcontractors, or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by either Consultant or its subcontractors, in the performance of this
Agreement. “City” shall include City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers.

11.2 Consultant to Indemnify City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall
indemnify, hold harmless, and defend City from and against any and all claims, losses,
costs or expenses for any personal injury or property damage arising out of or in
connection with Consultant’s alleged negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct or
other wrongful acts, errors or omissions of Consultant or failure to comply with any
provision in this Agreement.

11.3  Scope of Indemnity. Personal injury shall include injury or damage due to death or
injury to any person, whether physical, emotional, consequential or otherwise, Property
damage shall include injury to any personal or real property. Consultant shall not be
required to indemnify City for such loss or damage as is caused by the sole active
negligence or willful misconduct of the City.

11.4  Attorneys Fees. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees for
counsel of City’s choice, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation.
Consultant shall not be entitled to any refund of attorneys’ fees, defense costs or
expenses in the event that it is adjudicated to have been non-negligent.

11.5 Defense Deposit. The City may request a deposit for defense costs from Consultant
with respect to a claim. If the City requests a defense deposit, Consultant shall provide
it within 15 days of the request.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 6 of 15
APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



11.6

11.7

11.8

Waiver of Statutory Immunity. The obligations of Consultant under this Section 11
are not limited by the provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act.
Consultant expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to
City.

Indemnification by Subcontractors. Consultant agrees to obtain executed indemnity
agreements with provisions identical to those set forth here in this Section 11 from each
and every subcontractor or any other person or entity involved in the performance of
this Agreement on Consultant’s behalf.

Insurance Not a Substitute. City does not waive any indemnity rights by accepting
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant’s
indemnification obligations apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies
are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or
expense.

12. INSURANCE

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

Insurance Required. Consultant shall maintain insurance as described in this section
and shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to do the same.
Approval of the insurance by the City shall not relieve or decrease any liability of
Consultant Any requirement for insurance to be maintained after completion of the
work shall survive this Agreement.

Documentation of Insurance. City will not execute this agreement until it has received
a complete set of all required documentation of insurance coverage. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the
Consultant’s obligation to provide them. Consultant shall file with City:

e  Certificate of Insurance, indicating companies acceptable to City, with a Best's
Rating of no less than A: VII showing. The Certificate of Insurance must include
the following reference: Willdan Professional Services Agreement

e  Documentation of Best’s rating acceptable to the City.

e Original endorsements effecting coverage for all policies required by this
Agreement.

e  Complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including
endorsements affecting the coverage.

Coverage Amounts. Insurance coverage shall be at least in the following minimum
amounts:

J Professional Liability Insurance: $1,000,000 per occurrence,
$2,000,000 aggregate

e  General Liability:
e  General Aggregate: $2,000,000

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 7 of 15

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



12.4.

12.5.

12.6.

12.7.

e  Products Comp/Op Aggregate $2,000,000
e  Personal & Advertising Injury $1,000,000
e  Each Occurrence $1,000,000
e  Fire Damage (any one fire) $ 50,000

e  Medical Expense (any 1 person) $ 5,000

e  Workers' Compensation:

e  Workers' Compensation Statutory Limits
e  EL Each Accident $1,000,000
e EL Disease - Policy Limit $1,000,000
e EL Disease - Each Employee $1,000,000

o Automobile Liability

e Any vehicle, combined single limit  $1,000,000

Any available insurance proceeds broader than or in excess of the specified minimum
insurance coverage requirements or limits shall be available to the additional insured.
Furthermore, the requirements for coverage and limits shall be the greater of (1) the
minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement, or (2) the broader coverage
and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the
named insured

General Liability Insurance. Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be no less
broad than ISO form CG 00 01. Coverage must be on a standard Occurrence form.
Claims-Made, modified, limited or restricted Occurrence forms are not acceptable.

Worker’s Compensation Insurance. Consultant is aware of the provisions of Section
3700 of the Labor Code which requires every employer to carry Workers'
Compensation (or to undertake equivalent self-insurance), and Consultant will comply
with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this
Agreement. If such insurance is underwritten by any agency other than the State
Compensation Fund, such agency shall be a company authorized to do business in the
State of California.

Automobile Liability Insurance. Covered vehicles shall include owned if any, non-
owned, and hired automobiles and, trucks.

Professional Liability Insurance or Errors & Omissions Coverage. The deductible
or self-insured retention may not exceed $50,000. If the insurance is on a Claims-Made
basis, the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of the work.
Coverage shall be continued for two years after the completion of the work by one of
the following: (1) renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting period
endorsement; or (3) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the
commencement of the work under this Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 8 of 15

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



12.8. Claims-Made Policies. If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-
made basis the Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the
contract or the beginning of contract work. Claims-Made Insurance must be maintained
and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion
of the contract of work. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective
date, the Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

12.9. Additional Insured Endorsements. The City, it’s City Council, Commissions,
officers, and employees of Sierra Madre must be endorsed as an additional insured for
each policy required herein, other than Professional Errors and Omissions and
Worker’s Compensation, for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations
by or on behalf of the Consultant. Consultant’s insurance policies shall be primary as
respects any claims related to or as the result of the Consultant’s work. Any insurance,
pooled coverage or self-insurance maintained by the City, its elected or appointed
officials, directors, officers, agents, employees, volunteers, or consultants shall be non-
contributory. All endorsements shall be signed by a person authorized by the insurer to
bind coverage on its behalf. General liability coverage can be provided using an
endorsement to the Consultant’s insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11
85 or both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37.

12.10. Failure to Maintain Coverage. In the event any policy is canceled prior to the
completion of the project and the Consultant does not furnish a new certificate of
insurance prior to cancellation, City has the right, but not the duty, to obtain the required
insurance and deduct the premium(s) from any amounts due the Consultant under this
Agreement. Failure of the Consultant to maintain the insurance required by this
Agreement, or to comply with any of the requirements of this section, shall constitute
a material breach of this Agreement.

12.11. Notices. Consultant shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required
insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required policies are
reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-insured retention is increased. Consultant shall
provide no less than 30 days’ notice of any cancellation or material change to policies
required by this Agreement. Consultant shall provide proof that cancelled or expired
policies of insurance have been renewed or replaced with other policies providing at
least the same coverage. Such proof will be furnished at least two weeks prior to the
expiration of the coverages. The name and address for Additional Insured
Endorsements, Certificates of Insurance and Notices of Cancellation is: City of Sierra
Madre, Attn: Miguel Hernandez, Human Resources Manager, 232 W. Sierra Madre
Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 9 of 15
APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



12.12. Consultant’s Insurance Primary. The insurance provided by Consultant, including
all endorsements, shall be primary to any coverage available to City. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by City and/or its officers, employees, agents or volunteers,
shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

12.13. Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant hereby waives all rights of subrogation against the
City. Consultant shall additionally waive such rights either by endorsement to each
policy or provide proof of such waiver in the policy itself.

12.14. Report of Claims to City. Consultant shall report to the City, in addition to the
Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted to Consultant's insurer in
connection with the services under this Agreement.

12.15. Premium Payments and Deductibles. Consultant must disclose all deductibles and
self-insured retention amounts to the City. The City may require the Consultant to
provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration,
and defense expenses within retention amounts. Ultimately, City must approve all such
amounts prior to execution of this Agreement.

City has no obligation to pay any premiums, assessments, or deductibles under any
policy required in this Agreement. Consultant shall be responsible for all premiums and
deductibles in all of Consultant’s insurance policies. The amount of deductibles for
insurance coverage required herein are subject to City’s approval.

12.16. Duty to Defend and Indemnify. Consultant’s duties to defend and indemnify City
under this Agreement shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements and
shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.

13. MUTUAL COOPERATION

13.1. City Cooperation in Performance. City shall provide Consultant with all pertinent
data, documents and other requested information as is reasonably available for the
proper performance of Consultant’s services under this Agreement.

13.2. Consultant Cooperation in Defense of Claims. If any claim or action is brought
against City relating to Consultant’s performance in connection with this Agreement,
Consultant shall render any reasonable assistance that City may require in the defense
of that claim or action.

13.3. Records and Inspections
Consultant shall maintain full and accurate records with respect to all matters covered

under this Agreement for a period of three years after the expiration or termination of
this Agreement. City shall have the right to access and examine such records, without
charge, during normal business hours. City shall further have the right to audit such

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 10 of 15
APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents,
proceedings, and activities.

13.4. PERMITS AND APPROVALS Consultant shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense,
all permits and regulatory approvals necessary for Consultant’s performance of this
Agreement. This includes, but shall not be limited to, professional licenses,
encroachment permits and building and safety permits and inspections.

14. NOTICES

Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports required by this Agreement shall be deemed
received on: (1) the day of delivery if delivered by hand, facsimile or overnight courier
service during Consultant’s and City’s regular business hours; or (ii) on the third
business day following deposit in the United States mail if delivered by mail, postage
prepaid, to the addresses listed below (or to such other addresses as the parties may,
from time to time, designate in writing).

If to City: If to Consultant:

Vincent Gonzalez Karen Warner, ACIP
Planning & Community Preservation President

City of Sierra Madre Karen Warner Associates
232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 882 North Holliston Avenue
Sierra Madre, CA 91024 Pasadena, CA 91104
Telephone: (626) 355-7138 Telephone: (626) 791-5596

With courtesy copy to:

Teresa L. Highsmith, Esqg.

Sierra Madre City Attorney
Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC
790 E. Colorado Blvd.., Ste. 850
Pasadena, Angeles, CA 91101
Telephone: (213) 542-5700

Facsimile: (213) 542-5710

15. SURVIVING COVENANTS

The parties agree that the covenants contained in paragraph 5.10 (Records), paragraph
10.4 (Indemnification of CalPERS Determination), Section 11 (Indemnification),
paragraph 12.8 (Claims-Made Policies), paragraph 13.2 (Consultant Cooperation in
Defense of Claims), and paragraph 18.1 (Confidentiality) of this Agreement shall
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, subject to the provisions and
limitations of this Agreement and all otherwise applicable statutes of limitations and
repose.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 11 of 15
APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



16. TERMINATION

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

16.4.

City Termination. City may terminate this Agreement for any reason on five calendar
days’ written notice to Consultant. Consultant agrees to cease all work under this
Agreement on or before the effective date of any notice of termination. All City data,
documents, objects, materials or other tangible things shall be returned to City upon
the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Consultant Termination. Consultant may terminate this Agreement for a material
breach of this Agreement upon 30 days’ notice.

Compensation Following Termination. Upon termination, Consultant shall be paid
based on the work satisfactorily performed at the time of termination. In no event shall
Consultant be entitled to receive more than the amount that would be paid to Consultant
for the full performance of the services required by this Agreement. The City shall have
the benefit of such work as may have been completed up to the time of such
termination.

Remedies. City retains any and all available legal and equitable remedies for
Consultant’s breach of this Agreement.

17. INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of California.

Integration of Exhibits. All documents referenced as exhibits in this Agreement are
hereby incorporated into this Agreement. In the event of any material discrepancy
between the express provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of any document
incorporated herein by reference, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. This
instrument contains the entire Agreement between City and Consultant with respect to
the transactions contemplated herein. No other prior oral or written agreements are
binding upon the parties. Amendments hereto or deviations herefrom shall be effective
and binding only if made in writing and executed on by City and Consultant.

Headings. The headings and captions appearing at the commencement of the sections
hereof, and in any paragraph thereof, are descriptive only and for convenience in
reference to this Agreement. Should there be any conflict between such heading, and
the section or paragraph thereof at the head of which it appears, the language of the
section or paragraph shall control and govern in the construction of this Agreement.

Pronouns. Masculine or feminine pronouns shall be substituted for the neuter form and
vice versa, and the plural shall be substituted for the singular form and vice versa, in
any place or places herein in which the context requires such substitution(s).

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 12 of 15

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



17.5.

17.6.

Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to
any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, then such
term or provision shall be amended to, and solely to the extent necessary to, cure such
invalidity or unenforceability, and shall be enforceable in its amended form. In such
event, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or
unenforceable, shall not be affected, and each term and provision of this Agreement
shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

No Presumption against Drafter. Each party had an opportunity to consult with an
attorney in reviewing and drafting this agreement. Any uncertainty or ambiguity shall
not be construed for or against any party based on attribution of drafting to any party.

18. GENERAL PROVISIONS

18.1.

18.2.

18.3.

18.4.

18.5.

Confidentiality. All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or
received by Consultant for performance of this Agreement are deemed confidential and
Consultant shall not disclose it without prior written consent by City. City shall grant
such consent if disclosure is legally required. All City data shall be returned to City
upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Conflicts of Interest. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for
Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants that it has
not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide
employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage
fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making
of this Agreement. Consultant further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or
subcontractor to file, a Statement of Economic Interest with the City’s Filing Officer if
required under state law in the performance of the services. For breach or violation of
this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability. For
the term of this Agreement, no member, officer, or employee of City, during the term
of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain
any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.

Non-assignment. Consultant shall not delegate, transfer, subcontract or assign its
duties or rights hereunder, either in whole or in part, without City’s prior written
consent, and any attempt to do so shall be void and of no effect. City shall not be
obligated or liable under this Agreement to any party other than Consultant.

Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assigns
of the parties.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as expressly stated herein, there is no intended
third-party beneficiary of any right or obligation assumed by the parties.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 13 of 15

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



18.6. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this
Agreement.

18.7. Non-Discrimination. Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical condition), creed, national origin, color, disability as defined by law,
disabled veteran status, Vietnam veteran status, religion, age (40 and above), medical
condition (cancer-related), marital status, ancestry, or sexual orientation. Employment
actions to which this provision applies shall include, but not be limited to, the
following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; or in
terms, conditions or privileges of employment, and selection for training. Consultant
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

18.8. Waiver. No provision, covenant, or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to
have been waived by City or Consultant unless in writing signed by one authorized to
bind the party asserted to have consented to the waiver. The waiver by City or
Consultant of any breach of any provision, covenant, or condition of this Agreement
shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other
provision, covenant, or condition.

18.9. Excused Failure to Perform. Consultant shall not be liable for any failure to perform
if Consultant presents acceptable evidence, in City’s sole judgment that such failure
was due to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of Consultant.

18.10. Remedies Non-Exclusive. Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now
or hereafter existing at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise shall be cumulative and
shall be in addition to every other right, power, or remedy provided for herein or now
or hereafter existing at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise. The exercise, the
commencement of the exercise, or the forbearance from the exercise by any party of
any one or more of such rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous
or later exercise by such party of any or all of such other rights, powers or remedies.

18.11. Attorneys’ Fees. If legal action shall be necessary to enforce any term, covenant or
condition contained in this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award
of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs expended in the action.

18.12. Venue. The venue for any litigation shall be Los Angeles County, California and
Consultant hereby consents to jurisdiction in Los Angeles County for purposes of
resolving any dispute or enforcing any obligation arising under this Agreement.

TO EFFECTUATE THIS AGREEMENT, the parties have caused their duly authorized
representatives to execute this Agreement on the dates set forth below.

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services
Page 14 of 15
APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19



“City”
City of Sierra Madre

By:

Signature

Printed: Gabriel Engeland

Title: City Manager

Date:

Attest:

By:

Date:

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk

Approved as to form:

By:

Teresa L. Highsmith, City Attorney

Date:

“Consultant”
Karen Warner Associates

By:

Signature
Printed: Karen Warner
Title: President

Date:

Professional Services Agreement — Consultant Services

APPROVED FOR USE 7/30/19

Page 15 of 15



EXHIBIT A

SIERRA MADRE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT

SCOPE OF WORK

The 2021-2029 Housing Element will evaluate Sierra Madre's current housing needs and
market conditions, constraints and resources, and will assess the effectiveness of the
City’s current housing programs in addressing these housing issues. The following Scope
of Work presents the Element’s major tasks, and depicts how these tasks build upon one
another to establish a comprehensive housing strategy for the City.

TASK 1. INTRODUCTION

The introductory chapter to the Element sets the stage by describing the purpose of the
Housing Element in lay terms and establishes the community’s housing context. The
Introduction also includes a summary of key housing issues; establishes the Housing
Element’s relationship with the balance of the General Plan; and describes the public
participation process.

TASK 2. EVALUATION OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS UNDER ADOPTED ELEMENT

In order to develop appropriate programs to address the community’s housing needs,
KWA will work with City staff to determine the achievements under adopted housing
programs in the 2014-2021 Sierra Madre Housing Element, and evaluate the effectiveness
of these programs in delivering housing services. This evaluation will include a description
of the City’s track record in producing new affordable housing during the prior planning
period, and a comparison of both market rate and assisted housing production with the
City’s identified regional housing growth needs (RHNA).

The following are among several key program actions in Sierra Madre's Housing Element
to be reviewed and evaluated for appropriateness in the Element update:

v/ Second unit program

v' Affordable housing development assistance

v' Density bonus update

v' Zoning text amendments for special needs housing
TASK 3. HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT/RHNA
This section of the Housing Element provides a comprehensive analysis of the City’s
existing and projected housing needs, and serves as a guide for focusing Housing
Element policies and programs in response to these needs. The Needs Assessment
encompasses an analysis of the following:
Population and household characteristics
Housing stock characteristics

Assisted housing at-risk of conversion to market rate
Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA)

DN NN

KWA Proposal Page 2


clin
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A


SIERRA MADRE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT

Population and Household Characteristics. Data sources including the American
Community Survey, 2020 Census (as available), and available local studies will be
compiled and evaluated to derive the following demographic and household information:

v' Current population and population growth trends for City and comparable
communities.

v' Population characteristics including age distribution and race/ethnicity, and
demographic shifts over past 2 decades.

v' Current and projected employment in Sierra Madre.

v" Household characteristics including household type, tenure and size,
overcrowding/severe overcrowding by tenure and geographic
concentration, and housing overpayment/severe overpayment for owners
and renters.

v" Household income for City in comparison to the region and other
comparable communities, income differences within the City, identification
of persons living in poverty.

v' Special needs populations - including seniors, large families, disabled,
single-parent households, homeless. Analysis of the income and tenure
characteristics of these groups, and availability of specialized housing in
Sierra Madre to meet their needs.

Housing Stock Characteristics. Information on the City’s housing stock and current
market characteristics will be obtained from a variety of published sources, including
Corelogic sales data, CoStar and internet rent surveys, and local market studies. The
following information will be provided:

v" Housing growth trends for Sierra Madre and similar communities.

v" Housing unit mix and tenure, and geographic concentrations of rentals,
including single-family rentals.

v' Vacancy rates.
v" Home ownership and rental market analysis.

v' Affordability analysis of City’s owner and rental housing to very low, low
and moderate income households

v' Housing conditions analysis to assess the magnitude of units requiring
rehabilitation or replacement in Sierra Madre.

Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA). HCD and SCAG have been informing
communities to expect a significantly higher RHNA allocation in the 6th housing element
cycle. In fact, preliminary numbers released by SCAG show a projected need ranging
from 130 (Option 3), to 535 (Option 1), to 625 (Option 2) new units for Sierra Madre,
compared to 55 units in the prior housing element cycle.

KWA Proposal Page 3



SIERRA MADRE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT

PROJECT SCHEDULE

The following presents a general project schedule for the Sierra Madre Housing Element,
subject to refinement based on further discussions with staff. KWA has a strong reputation
for keeping projects on track, and offers the full commitment of staff throughout the project
to ensure a successful program. The proposed schedule provides for element adoption

in April 2021, well before the October 2021 deadline.

1. Project Kick-off

2. Update Existing Sites inventory (per AB 1397,
building permits issued, entitled projects)

3. Release of draft RHNA by SCAG
Identification of additional sites

4. Public Outreach and vetting of sites:

v' Community Workshops (2)

- not part of Housing Element scope

6. Screen Draft Housing Element

7. Revised Screen Draft Element

8. Adoption of final RHNA by SCAG

9. Public Review Draft Element
HCD 60 day review of Draft Element

10. CEQA
Administrative Draft IS-ND
Public Review Draft IS-ND
Final IS-ND

11. Public Hearing Draft Element

Submittal of Adopted Element to HCD

v" Planning Commission/City Council Study Session(s)

5. Rezoning and Land Use Element amendment (as req’d)

Planning Commission/City Council Study Session

Planning Commission/City Council Public Hearings

January 2020

January -
February

February -
March 2020

March -
July

July —
September

September

October -
November

October

December-
January 2021

December
December
February 2021

February 2021 -
April

KWA Proposal

Page 11



SIERRA MADRE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT

© 00N Ul WN P

=
o

PROJECT BUDGET 2021-2029 CITY OF SIERRA MADRE HOUSING ELEMENT

Element Introduction
Review of Existing Housing Element
Housing Needs Assessment/RHNA
Site Availability
Potential Housing Constraints
Housing Resources
Housing Plan
Draft Housing Element/HCD Review
Final Housing Element/Submittal to HCD
Public Participation
Council/ Commission Study Sessions (2)
Community Workshops (2)
Council/Commission Public Hearings (3)
Staff Meetings (3)
Subtotal

CEQA Compliance: IS-ND

Direct Costs
Reproduction/Mileage/Miscellaneous
CoreLogic Purchase

CosStar Purchase (est.)

TOTAL

*___
12 16
20 75 8
25 25 24
24 32
8 12
32 40
60 24 6
12 4
20 20 12
20 20 12
18 4
6 2
261 167 103 66

estimate - actual cost based on T&M

$600
$3,400
$11,140
$8,170
$6,800
$2,400
$8,800
$11,880
$2,200

$5,960
$5,960
$3,020
$1,100
$71,430

$10,000

$1,000
$250
$250

$82,930

KWA Proposal

Page 13



[+1]
= 5119092 oge'es $ [:1S09 193royud WIOL _
0 00026 S1S00 GILVIDOSSY HIHLO ¥ STIVIHALYI ‘SATddNS HOVAHLNO O11ENd  1TV.LOL-8NS 1SOD LOJHIONI
T 086°L8 9 w1 ey w0 e 8 | O0v  |*IVIOL-8NS 1SOD 103HIA
H 068 4 oL fugaioau pue Buidooyawi | aAneASILIWPY (9
5L9'2 $ a t 4 = 3 ueg BuisnoH Jeiq ‘sexied ‘SaUBLIWLNG YoJeasay (se|qelaalad|g
SISAjeuy |eJUBLLUOIALT
00z'L ¢ 8 1oy sbunssy ojqnd spusiy um__.m_umnm [RIUBLILICJIALT 67
(1748 $ ¥ 14 ] I ! 8sInon uojeledald Hi3} WUsSWN20(] SISABUY [BlUSWUCIAUS [euld |
0962 $ l 1 1} 1 1 (es1N07) UONELIETAIS H|J) SIUSWLLIDD 0} asuodsay | /'y
ogs'e $ ¥ 14 9l Z t Mmainay aland AeQ-Gp pUE |3 Yeiq jo uojeledeld |9y
0902 $ ! L ot L L {aNwW o Y13) ued Buniodey pue Buloyuep uoneiny g4
08s'ze $ 2 ve 88 gl ¥ HI3 Jeig sAjeysupy Jo uoneiedald vy
0sL's $ =4 (spedat (eoligoa ] ) sisAleuy [EualILONAUL (e
008'L $ g 4 E ¢ I (3s4n02) uopeledaly H)3) Bupaajy buidoas Jand |zt
06L'E $ g ¥ (48 4 4 uoneledald (0 aNONAUSIU| JO SONCN pue APRS 12U | Lt
S66°L $ g8 4 14 I I . uoneajiuagd slels (e |
061'e $ 8 ¥ 8 z 2 . Joisiap eu] aledald - wawald Suisnopg g
089's 4 8 8 8 8 8 leaH Iounon Ao pue uoissiuuen Builugg ‘sBunaspy Asnuauon|ze
ogL't $ ol 81 . 14 14 wawse)3 Buisnoy yeia |(L'e
oel'y $ Gl ] 8 ¥ ¥ swelfold uoneaws|du pue 'ss1oiod ‘siect) BuisnoH vz
00L'L $ B8 4 I 4 I sjuensuoD BuisnoH |g'z |
0oLl $ 8 Z L - 1 sepunuoddg ssinasey Buisnoy [z
016} $ 2 ¥ L z L sisAjeuy spasN | L'g ,
068'c $ 8 ¥ L4 2 € ‘880IN0S8Y ‘SUOHpUO) m.Nm_h_._M__h___m__._ﬂMﬂmﬂ:ﬂ&q&%ﬂﬁ%&mwwm gL
099’ $ s : : ’ z aleeieliplucasmioo byt ot O see o A8
. . . . . . NSV AZ 1S00 % SHAOH
685 001§ g1s 0si$ ssi$ | ous  [ewewbuing : s
BIOIED) B)LIT | BpJaD n.__umm .:em_ﬂm_ﬂﬁ ahuuy Y uﬁ:mmw_.mom 1eudng a.__u@.( 1BWeN ; .
Asd VL0 - . — - . L = : . i it ONASEL
L | ; jsteioadsg isbeuepy afaeysy . : .. G . .
HRISUMIRY | SUURId | ASHMBIQ 0SS | oiusmuonaug | palosg | -ubedioud hote ol
6102C/0E/6 - WvaL wmm.mzazmu_ mmn._b:mkmd.ﬁz_
JHAVIN vHH3IS 40 ALID SHIAANIONH @&

BUFLO N LS W AN p\‘

8|npayog 884 pesox3-0l-1o0N



clin
Typewritten Text

clin
Typewritten Text

clin
Typewritten Text

clin
Typewritten Text

clin
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B


jgnd |e43uaD Jo/pue ‘sdnoJlg Iapjoyayels ‘Wea) |eulajul/m asoys Suipnpou - sSupsan |

BuneaH/uoissas Apnis/3uiea 12uno) Al 1o uoissiwwio) Suluueld Aln l

UE[d JO malAay gnd
$3|qEI3ANRQ JO MaInay AduaBy/iels Al

ssaigold ujyse] 10afoid|

BulBwI peapudlxa Sy} dUjULIRISP 0] 1SAW |IIM Hels Al pue 3| usy; 4osfoad ayl Jo mataas oyl Bulinp Y3 ue o
ONW ue woyj papuedxs aq metaai alf} PINOYS "uohielejdsaq aanebeN pereBii e seA1ed21 1ey] 108load e jo uoealgues g uondope ue sjussaidas suaw s1y |

*SBUlIISIN = @ (310N

"SIUSWNIOQ UOIIEINWIT) DH ‘S1UBWINIOg

9iepdn waws|3 BUISNOH [Bul4 "M3IASY J1|qNnd/44R1S Joy 21epdn

U3W3[F BUISNOH Yed(d ‘SAXUIBLU ‘SBLIBLULINS YDIEasay sajqesaaljad
(0¥ d 2O O3 ()3

SISAjeuy

[eluBWILOIIAUY JO4 SBUIIBAA J1]qNnd SPUSNY 151 B12adS |EjuswiuoaiAug

L}

(854n0) uoieledald Yi3) JuawWnI0Q SIsAjeuy [EIUaLILOIIAUT [2UId

{asinod uonesedsig Yi3) siuaWWo) 0] asuodsay

M3IABY 21|gNd AeQ-Si PUB Y17 Jeaq 4o uolesedaid

{aNW 4o Y13} ue|d Burpoday pue Bulloyuol uoleSIyN

H13 Yeiq aaizeaISIUIWPY jO Uoneledaly

(s1today [eauyaa] ) sIsA|EUY [BIUIWIUONIAUT

(as4no) uonyeredald y3} Buneay Suidoas agngd

uoneledald JO 32110N/IUIU| JO 3D1I0N pue Apnis [eruj
g v Lt

UOIIeIIIS] 311

Ve

i

.

UOISIBA (el aledald - Juswa[3 FuisnoH

£t

sduleay (1pouno) Ao
pue uoisspuwo) Juiuueld ‘s8uilasip Alunwwo)

uawWa(3 BuisnoH Yeiq

sweJdo.d uoneluaws|dw) pue ‘saiaijod ‘sjeog uisnoy

T'€

¥e

siulessuo) duisnoy

ge

sailunuoddQ 924nosay Suisnoy

e

SIsAjeuy spaaN
& FHYd4ud ! P O

suondQ suipun{ pue‘siuiel1suo)
'$92Jn0s2y ‘SUCIIIPUO) 3ZIIBLWIING PUE M3IARY JUSWNI0Q

14

HIBWI230

YIFNANON

H380120

uFANALATS|

1snoanv

Alnr

annr

AVIAI

TddY|

AHYNINYT]
0Z0%,

1UBLW33 JUISNOH 0T0Z-¥T0T
5,A1D @1BN|BAT 7§ MIIASY - UOIIBUIPIOOD) WEa] J38[0ld - Buileay oy

ONINIL B SMSYL 1D3r0ud

6202-TZ0T 10} 91epdn JUBW3|3 BUISNOH B.PE|A) BLIDIS
JINAIHDS 1O3rodd




EXHIBIT C

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
2021 - 2029 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Due Date: September 30, 2019 on or before 3:00 p.m.

Date of release: August 22, 2019

I. OVERVIEW

The City of Sierra Madre’s Planning Division is requesting proposals from consultants who
are qualified to prepare the City’s 2021-2029 Housing Element Update of the General
Plan. The selected consultant will review the City’s existing Housing Element and will
update the document to reflect current conditions, city policies, and methods to meet the
housing requirements mandated by the State of California Department of Housing and
Community Development.

The following information defines the proposed project, scope of services, proposal
requirements, selection process and other information required to prepare and submit a
proposal.

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The City’s 2014-2021 Housing Element was last updated and adopted by City Council in
January 2014, and is deemed in compliance with State Housing Element law by the State
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD).

The City is now seeking to update the current 2021-2029 Housing Element. The update will
reassess the community’s housing-related goals and objectives and Regional Housing
Needs Assessment (RHNA) figures, while addressing issues and establishing objectives with
respect to a wide range of possible housing related program changes resulting from the
State-wide dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies. The City’s RHNA allocation for the
planning period of 2021-2029 was 55 dwelling units (Attachment 1). The City’'s RHNA
allocation for the 6" Housing and Community Development Planning Cycle is undetermined
at the time of the release of this request for proposals.



City of Sierra Madre - 2021-2029 Housing Element Update Request for Proposals

. ABOUT THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

Incorporated in 1907, the City of Sierra Madre is one of 29 cities in the San Gabriel Valley
region of Los Angeles County. The city encompasses approximately 3.2 square miles with a
population of 10,986 people. Itis located approximately 17 miles northeast of downtown Los
Angeles at the base of the San Gabriel Mountains, as shown in Figure 1-1, Regional
Location. The City is bounded by the cities of Arcadia to the east and south, Pasadena to the
west, and the Angeles National Forest to the north.

Sierra Madre is one of the few cities in the region that has been able to retain its village
quality despite pressures for growth, modernization and diversification in the surrounding
communities. The nearest major transportation corridor to the City is Interstate 210 (I-210),
which runs east and west a mile south of the City limits. This distance, the lack of “through”
arterials, and the fact that the City has been described in the 1996 General Plan and the
city’s most recent Housing Element as “built out” since the 1940s has protected Sierra Madre
from the pressure of large-scale, commercial, residential and industrial development and
helped to retain its small-town character.

IV. RFP SCHEDULE

Release Request for Proposal August 22, 2019
Proposals Due September 30, 2019
Consultant Selection October 7, 2019
City Council Selection and Award November 12, 2019
Kick-off Meeting January 8, 2020

V. SCOPE OF WORK
Task 1 — Assessment

1.1 Evaluation of the 2021-2029 Housing Element. Consultant will be required to review
and evaluate the current Housing Element and its programs, including:

e Adiscussion of the effectiveness of the housing programs and policies as well as changes
to available programs as a result of the State’s elimination of Redevelopment Agencies;

e A comparison of projected results from the adopted Housing Element to actual
accomplishments;

e A summary of how these results are important to a revision of the Housing Element; and

e An evaluation of the existing Housing Element to current State Housing Law.

1.2 Document Review. Consultant will review City documents to aid in understanding local
conditions and the community’s housing needs. Documents include, but are not limited to
the housing element implemented for the 2014-2021 planning period, second unit ordinance
adopted 2016 and all housing programs and ordinances currently in place. In addition, the

Page 2 of 7




City of Sierra Madre - 2021-2029 Housing Element Update Request for Proposals

Consultant will need to evaluate existing City Housing resources and funding mechanisms
and identifying key issues.

Task 2 — Housing Element Preparation

2.1 Needs Analysis. The Consultant will complete the housing assessment and needs
analysis to satisfy Government Code Section 65582(a). The Consultant will coordinate with
staff to develop a current housing inventory and to evaluate housing conditions using State
approved criteria. Where necessary to complete this task, the Consultant will obtain and
analyze the most current data available on demographics and housing in the City of Sierra
Madre.

The gathered data will be used to draft a housing needs assessment that will identify:

Population, demographic and employment trends;

Special housing needs (e.g. large families, seniors, farm workers, homeless, etc.);
Housing stock characteristics, including at risk units, vacant and underutilized land,;
Adequacy of the City’s public facilities (maintenance) and improvements needed);
Housing cost and affordability;

Regional housing needs share; and

Current vacant and underutilized land inventory.

2.2 Housing Resources and Opportunities. The Consultant will identify housing resources,
including programmatic, physical, and financial. In addition, the consultant will prepare
an analysis of the relationship between the projected housing needs and the dwelling unit
capacity and availability of services to said sites.

2.3 Housing Constraints. The Consultant will identify potential and actual governmental
and nongovernmental constraints to housing production. Where constraints exist, the
Consultant will develop housing programs to mitigate them or, where appropriate and
legally possible, remove them.

2.4 Housing Goals, Policies, and Implementation Programs. The Consultant must build
on the existing Housing Element, public input, and the needs and constraints analyses to
formulate an eight-year implementation plan with appropriate and implementable
housing policies and programs. This work will need to satisfy the requirements of
Government Code Section 65583 et seq.

Task 3 — Prepare and Finalize Housing Element

3.1 Draft Housing Element. The Consultant will be required to prepare and submit
three (3) copies of the Administrative Draft Housing Element for Staff review and comment.
Once staff has reviewed and commented on the draft, the Consultant will modify the
Administrative Draft as directed. The Consultant will then prepare and submit twenty (20)
copies of a Draft Housing Element for the City to provide to HCD, the City Council, Planning

Page 3 of 7



City of Sierra Madre - 2021-2029 Housing Element Update Request for Proposals

Commission and the general public for review and comment.

3.2 Community Meetings, Planning Commission and City Council Hearings. In addition
to communication with staff via telephone and email, The Consultant must attend two (2)
community meetings and three public hearings (one Planning Commission and up to two City
Council meetings) to respond to questions during public review of the Draft Housing Element.
The Consultant will assist staff in preparing summary notes of the community meetings,
responding to any public or agency comments, including comments from HCD, and shall be
available to attend additional hearings on a time-and-materials basis. Consultant will review
and suggest additions to the mailing list of all appropriate agencies, organizations and
individuals to contact for the public outreach and hearings used in previous outreach efforts.

3.3 Housing Element. The Consultant will prepare a final version of the Housing Element,
including any changes to the draft required by HCD and City staff and officials, for certification
by the State mandated time frame. Consultant will work closely with staff to ensure that
the City meets all HCD deadlines and requirements.

3.4 State Certification. The Consultant must follow through with assisting the City in
achieving certification of the Housing Element after adoption by the City. The Consultant will
work closely with HCD and City of Sierra Madre and serve as the City’s representative and
liaison to HCD to ensure that City meets State requirements and will recommend modification
to the adopted Housing Element, if required to obtain certification.

Task 4 — Environmental Review

4.1 CEQA Completion and submittal of all required documents. The consultant must
prepare and process all applicable environmental documents pursuant to CEQA.

Task 5 —Required Work Products

The following products shall be prepared and delivered to the City:

e Research and Analysis;

e Administrative Draft Housing Element (3 Hard Copies, 1 electronic);

e Public Review Draft Housing Element (20 Hard Copies, 1 Compact Disc, 1 PDF)
e Administrative Final Housing Element (3 Hard Copies, 1 PDF);

e Final Housing Element (10 Hard Copies, 1 Compact Disc, and 1 PDF);

e CEQA Required Documents; and

e State Certification of 2021-2029 Housing Element from HCD.

Page 4 of 7



City of Sierra Madre - 2021-2029 Housing Element Update Request for Proposals

VI. PROPOSAL CONTENT

Proposal responses must adhere to the requirements set forth in this section, both for content
and sequence. Failure to adhere to these requirements or the inclusion of conditions,
limitations or misrepresentations may be cause for rejection of the submittal. Use 8-1/2 x 11
sheets (foldouts are acceptable for charts, etc.) and font size large enough to be easily
legible, but not smaller than 11 point. The original proposal and each subsequent copy
must be submitted on paper, properly bound, appropriately tabbed and labeled in the
following order:

A. Cover letter: Provide a “Cover Letter” and introduction, including the name and address
of the organization or individual submitting the proposal, together with the name, address,
telephone and e-mail address of the contact person who will be authorized to make
representations for the organization, and an expression of the Consultant’s ability and
desire to meet the requirements of this Request for Proposal. The letter must be signed by
an individual authorized to bind the firm contractually.

B. Table of Contents: This section shall include a detailed “Table of Contents” and an
outline of the submittal, identified by sequential page number and by section reference
number and section title as described herein.

C. Consultants Capabilities: Describe the firm’s resources, experience and capabilities as
they relate to scope of services described hereinabove. Submit in the order identified below:

1. Executive Summary: An executive summary should briefly describe the Consultant’s
qualifications, including experience in Housing Element design and updates, resumes of key
staff member(s) assigned to prepare the Housing Element. The executive summary should
also include a description of your understanding of the project.

2. Approach and Scope of Work: Discuss each item in Section Ill, Scope of work Task 1
through Task 4 with a cost estimate and cost proposal for the project including a breakdown
of costs by each task. Consultant will also provide a schedule of fees and hours.

D. References: Consultants must provide a minimum of three (3) client references,
preferably of city governments, municipalities, or service districts in California, of
organizations with whom you currently have contracts with and/or have previously had
contracts with for the provision of services of equal type and scope within the last eight
(8) years. Each reference shall include company or organization name, contact person, title,
telephone number, length of business relationship, and summary of services performed.

E. Additional Data: (This Section shall be limited to five pages.) Include any other data the
Consultant deems essential to the evaluation of the qualifications and proposal statements.
Where appropriate, please include key data linked to information contained in Section A thru
D. If there is no additional data, this section will consist of the statement, “We wish to
present no additional data.”

Page 5 of 7



City of Sierra Madre - 2021-2029 Housing Element Update Request for Proposals

F. Schedule: Consultants must provide a matrix showing tasks and a time frame to ensure
completion and submittal of document to the State HCD. Consultant shall propose a
schedule to meet HCD timelines for the certification of the 2021-2029 Housing Element.

VII. SELECTION CRITERIA

The City will consider all proposals and award a contract to the Consultant that provides the
best value for the City of Sierra Madre. Accordingly, the City will use the following evaluation
criteria to select a Consultant (not in any particular order):

1. Experience with fully preparing a Housing Element.
2. Relevant qualifications of personnel.

3. References from current and/or past Cities.

4. Familiarity with applicable state and federal laws.

5.  Approach to overall preparation of the housing element document as it relates to the
characteristics of Sierra Madre.

6. Proposed scheduling and ability to meet City deadlines.
A materially incomplete or non-responsive proposal will not be considered.

A selection committee comprised of City Staff will review and rank the proposals based on
the evaluation criteria above. After discussing and ranking the proposals, the committee will
select one consultant. If necessary, an alternate procedure may be to invite the top
applicants to an interview before the final selection. The City Council will make the final
award of contract.

VII. SELECTION PROCESS

The City of Sierra Madre reserves the right to reject any or all proposals for any reason
whatsoever. Interviews will be at the option of the City. The lowest cost proposal will
not necessarily be selected. The services to be provided shall be in accordance with the
standard City of Sierra Madre Professional Services Agreement (Attachment 2).

Please submit three (3) copies of your Proposal by September 30, 2019 on or before 3:00
PM to:

City of Sierra Madre

Attn. Vincent Gonzalez, Director

Planning and Community Preservation Department
232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd

Page 6 of 7



City of Sierra Madre - 2021-2029 Housing Element Update Request for Proposals

Sierra Madre, CA 91024
Telephone: (626) 355-7138
e-mail: vgonzalez@cityofsierramadre.com

Any questions concerning the Request for proposal should be directed to Vincent
Gonzalez, City of Sierra Madre Planning and Community Preservation Department, 232 W.
Sierra Madre Boulevard, Sierra Madre, CA 91024 (626) 355-7138.

VIl. ON-LINE REFERENCES

Consultants are advised to refer to our website at www.cityofsierramadre.com for a copy
of our current Housing Element document as well as our General Plan.

Attachment:
1. RHNA Allocation
2. Sample Professional Services Agreement

Page 7 of 7



John Harabedian , Mayor

John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem
Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

City of Sierra Madre

Sue Spears, City Clerk,

Age n d a Re po rt Michael Amerio City Treasurer
TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
INITIATED: Jim Hunt, Interim Chief of Police
REVIEWED BY: Gabriel Engeland, City Manager
DATE: Date of Council Meeting
SUBJECT: REPEAL CHAPTER 9.48 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council repeal chapter 9.48 of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code to conform
to current California State Law as directed by the California Supreme Court.

ALTERNATIVES

1. Repeal Chapter 9.48 of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code to conform to the California Supreme
Court ruling and rely on California State law.

2. Repeal sections 9.48.010, 9.48.030, 9.48.040 and amend section 9.48.020 by removing sub-
sections A, B, C, E, H, L, and N to conform with the California Supreme Court ruling.

3. Leave the ordinance sections in place, but continue with the current policy of non-enforcement of
these provisions which are in consistent with the California Supreme Court ruling regarding the
application of Jessica’s Law.

SUMMARY

In 2006, California voters approved Proposition 83, which is commonly referred to as Jessica’s Law. The
law created restrictions regarding where registered sex offenders could live. It also authorized local
governments to enact ordinances that further restricted the residency of any registered sex offender.

Most cities and counties in California created ordinances which further restricted the residency of any
registered sex offender. Sierra Madre enacted Chapter 9.48 of the municipal code to further restrict the
residency of any registered sex offender in the City of Sierra Madre. After adoption, the law was challenged
through the local ordinance in the County of San Diego. The case eventually went to the California
Supreme Court for a ruling. On March 2, 2015, the court ruled that San Diego County’s ordinance with a
blanket residency restriction was unconstitutional. The court decision applied directly to San Diego
County’s ordinance.

San Diego County’s ordinance mirrored nearly every other city and county ordinance, including the

FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NUMBER



SUBJECT
Council Meeting Date
Page 2 of 3

ordinance here in the City of Sierra Madre. The court ruling makes sections of the City’s ordinance
unconstitutional and unenforceable. It is important to note that although the City’s Jessica’s Law ordinance
has remained in the Municipal Code, it has not be enforced since the ruling of the California Supreme Court.

ANALYSIS

Staff recommends removing provisions that are inconsistent with changes in state or federal law, rather than
relying on non-enforcement policies at the Department level. Residents may also be confused if they read
Sierra Madre’s ordinance and are not aware of the City’s non-enforcement consistent with the California
Supreme Court decision. Any enforcement action regarding this ordinance would put the City at risk. Staff
conducted a study and found that the other cities in the San Gabriel Valley have either repealed their
ordinance completely or removed the sections affected by the Supreme Court’s ruling.

By repealing Chapter 9.48 of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code the City would clean up an unenforceable
and unenforced ordinance from the Municipal Code.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

There are no fiscal impacts

CEQA /ENVIRONMENTAL

There are no environmental impacts

PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS

This item has been noticed through the regular agenda notification process. Copies of this report are
available at City Hall, at the Sierra Madre Public Library, and can be accessed on the City’s website at
www.cityofsierramadre.com.



http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/

URGENCY ORDINANCE NO.

URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SIERRA MADRE REPEALING CHAPTER 9.48 (SEX
OFFENDER RESIDENCY AND LOITERING RESTRICTIONS) OF
TITLE 9 (PUBLIC PEACE, MORALS AND WELFARE) OF THE
SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE TO COMPLY WITH STATE
LAW RESTRICTIONS AND DECLARING THE URGENCY
THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTIONS 36934 AND 36937

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2006, the voters of the State of California
overwhelmingly approved Proposition 83, the Sexual Predator Punishment and Control
Act, commonly referred to as "Jessica's Law;” and

WHEREAS, Proposition 83, as codified in subsection (c) of Penal Code section
3003.5, authorizes local governments to enact ordinances that further restrict the
residency of any registered sex offender, and as so authorized, the City adopted
Chapter 9.48; and

WHEREAS, Since November 22, 2013, pursuant to a Settlement Agreement, the
City has stayed enforcement of Chapter 9.48, pending a decision from the California
Supreme Court regarding the enforceability of the residency restrictions under Proposition
83; and

WHEREAS, On March 2, 2015, the California Supreme Court in the matter of In
Re: Taylor, 60 Cal. 4th 1019, struck down the residency restrictions under Proposition 83,
which effectively invalidates local ordinances which relied upon this authority to impose
such residency restrictions; and

WHEREAS, for avoidance of confusion and potential liability, ordinances which
have been deemed unenforceable or unlawful as a result of subsequent changes in
the law should be repealed as soon as possible as necessary to protect the public’s
health, safety, and welfare by complying with state law; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 36937(b) authorizes the adoption of
ordinances that take effect immediately for the purpose of preserving the public peace,
health or safety, provided such ordinances are approved by four-fifths (4/5) vote of the
City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE,
CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:



SECTION 1. The recitals above are true and correct and incorporated herein by
reference.

SECTION 2. Urgency Findings: The City Council finds as follows, pursuant to
Government Code Section 36937(b):

A. The immediate repeal of Chapter 9.48 is necessary to avoid public confusion,
potential inadvertent enforcement of a regulation which has been rendered
unenforceable due to subsequent changes in state law and resulting liability.

B. Without adopting these amendments via an urgency ordinance, the risk of
confusion, inadvertent enforcement and resulting liability will continue, which is
detrimental to the public health and safety. Accordingly, the adoption of this
Urgency Ordinance is necessary to immediately preserve the public peace,
health, and safety, pursuant to Government Code Section 36937(b).

SECTION 3. Chapter 9.48 (“Sex Offender Residency and Loitering Restrictions)
or Title 9 (“Public Peace Morals and Welfare”) is repealed in its entirety.

SECTION 4. California__Environmental Quality Act. The City Council has
considered all of the evidence in the record, including the staff reports, the testimony
received during the public hearing on the matter held by the City Council, and hereby
determines that that the repeal of an unenforceable regulation will have no effect on the
environment and that this Ordinance is therefore exempt from California Environmental
Quality Act review pursuant to Title 14, Section 15061 (b)(3) of the California Code of
Regulations.

SECTION 5. Publication and Effective Date. Upon adoption of this Urgency
Ordinance by no less than four-fifths (4/5) vote of the Council, the Mayor shall sign and
the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this Ordinance. The City Clerk shall cause
the same to be published once in newspaper of general circulation within fifteen (15) days
after its adoption. This Urgency Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its
adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Sierra Madre
at the regular meeting of 12th day of November, 2019.

John Harabedian, Mayor



ATTEST:

Sue Spears, City Clerk

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS:
CITY OF SIERRA MADRE )

l, , City Clerk of the City of Sierra Madre, hereby certify that the
foregoing Urgency Ordinance No. was approved and adopted by said Council at
its regular meeting held on the 12th day of November, 2019 by the following vote, to-wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sue Spears, City Clerk



John Harabedian, Mayor

C |ty Of S | erra M ad re John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member
Agenda Report Gene Goss, Council Hemer

Sue Spears, City Clerk,
Michael Amerio City Treasurer

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation
Prepared by: Sophia Kownatzki, Administrative Intern

REVIEWED BY: Gabe Engeland

DATE: November 12, 2019

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION TO SUBMIT SB 2 PLANNING GRANTS

PROGRAM APPLICATION

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution 19-58 for authorization to submit a 2019 SB
2 Planning Grants Program application and to authorize the receipt of program funds if application is
approved.

ALTERNATIVES
1. Approve Resolution 19-58 for authorization to submit a 2019 SB 2 Planning Grants Program
application and to authorize the receipt of program funds if application is approved.

2. Direct staff not to submit the SB 2 Planning Grants Application.

SUMMARY

Staff desires to prepare and submit a 2019 application for the Senate Bill 2 Planning Grants Program,
which provides funding and technical assistance to local governments to increase housing approvals and
accelerate housing production. If accepted, the City is eligible to receive up to $160,000. Grant funding
would be used for three activities: 1) the residential sites inventory component of 2021-2029 Housing
Element update; 2) an update of the City’s Accessory Dwelling Unit ordinance; and 3) an update to the
Density Bonus ordinance. Should any grant funds remain, they will be directed towards updating the
City’s GIS mapping layers. Upon Council approval of the attached resolution, the City Manager will
finalize the grant application and execute any necessary grant agreements between the City and State.
The deadline for the non-competitive grant application is November 30, 2019.

ANALYSIS

In 2017, Governor Brown signed a 15 bill housing package aimed at addressing the state’s housing
shortage and high costs. Included in this package is the Planning Grants Program (PGP) of SB 2, which
provides up to $123 million in grants to all eligible local governments. Under the direction of the
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD), PGP provides one-time funding and
technical assistance for eligible local governments to update planning documents to increase housing



Page 2 of 3

approvals and accelerate housing production at all levels of affordability.

Funds are intended to achieve the following objectives:
1. Accelerate housing production
2. Streamline the approval of housing development affordable for owner and renter households at
all income levels
3. Facilitate housing affordability for all income groups
4. Promote development consistent with the State Planning Priorities
5. Ensure geographic equity in the distribution and expenditure of allocated funds.

The City is eligible for up to $160,000 in grant funding if the application is approved by California
Housing and Community Development Department (HCD). This grant would be used to fund the
following three activities:

1. 2021-2029 Housing Element update residential sites component: sites inventory analysis;
community education and outreach on potential rezone sites; rezoning as necessary to address
RHNA; CEQA on rezoning; public hearings and adoption of rezoning.

2. Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance update: amend Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 17.22
(Second Units) to conform to recent changes in State ADU/JADU law.

3. Density Bonus Ordinance update: amend Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 17.34
(Affordable Housing) to conform to recent changes in State density bonus law.

4. Should any grant funds remain, they will be directed towards updating the City’s GIS mapping
layers.

If awarded the grant, the City would also receive access to technical assistance from the HCD, such as
updated models, consulting workshops, online toolkits and best practices to accelerate housing
production.

CONSISTENCY WITH GENERAL PLAN

The proposed activities under the SB 2 Planning Grant Application are consistent with the Goals and
Objectives of the General Plan in that they would further the goal of developing housing for all income
groups in the community consistent with the City’s identified housing needs.

FINANCIAL REVIEW/SOURCE OF FUNDING

Under the direction of the Director of Planning and Community Preservation, the Consultant, Karen
Warner Associates (KWA) entered into a Professional Services Agreement totaling (60 hours X
$150/hour) to provide professional planning services to prepare and submit a SB 2 (2017) Planning
Grants Program (PGP) application to the California Housing and Community Development Department
(HCD). The PGP is a one-time component of SB 2 that provides financial and technical assistants to
local governments to update planning documents in order to accelerate housing production at all levels
of affordability. The maximum grant amount is $160,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL (CEQA)
The Authorization to submit an SB 2 Planning Grants Application is not subject to CEQA review. The
preparation of the Housing Element Update is subject to review in compliance with CEQA requirements.




Page 3 of 3

PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS
This item has been noticed though the regular agenda notification process. Copies of the report are
available via the City’s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com, at the City Hall public counter, and the

Sierra Madre Public Library.

Attachments:
Attachment 1 — City Council Resolution 19-58
Attachment 2 — Planning Grants Program Application
Appendix B — Nexus to Accelerating Housing Production


http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/

ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 19-58

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE AUTHORIZING
APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, SB 2 PLANNING GRANTS
PROGRAM FUNDS

WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Housing and Community
Development (Department) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated
March 28, 2019, for its Planning Grants Program (PGP); and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Sierra Madre desires to submit a project
application for the PGP program to accelerate the production of housing and will submit
a 2019 PGP grant application as described in the Planning Grants Program NOFA and
SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines released by the Department for the PGP
Program; and

WHEREAS, the Department is authorized to provide up to $123 million under the
SB 2 Planning Grants Program from the Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund for
assistance to Counties (as described in Health and Safety Code section 50470 et seq.
(Chapter 364, Statutes of 2017 (SB 2)) related to the PGP Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF SIERRA MADRE RESOLVES AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and submit
to the Department the 2019 Planning Grants Program application in the amount of
$160,000.

SECTION 2. In connection with the PGP grant, if the application is approved by the
Department, the City Manager is authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver a State of
California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of $160,000, and any and all
other documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure
the PGP grant, the City’s obligations related thereto, and all amendments thereto
(collectively, the “PGP Grant Documents”).

SECTION 3. The City shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the
Standard Agreement, the SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and any applicable
PGP guidelines published by the Department. Funds are to be used for allowable
expenditures as specifically identified in the Standard Agreement. The application in full
is incorporated as part of the Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded,
information provided, and timelines represented in the application will be enforceable
through the executed Standard Agreement. The City Council hereby agrees to use the
funds for eligible uses in the manner presented in the application as approved by the



Department and in accordance with the Planning Grants NOFA, the Planning Grants
Program Guidelines, and 2019 Planning Grants Program Application.

SECTION 4. The City Manager is authorized to execute the City of Sierra Madre Planning
Grants Program application, the PGP Grant Documents, and any amendments thereto,
on behalf of the City as required by the Department for receipt of the PGP Grant.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12" day of November, 2019.

Mayor, City of Sierra Madre, California

I, Sue Spears, City Clerk of the City of Sierra Madre, hereby certify that the
foregoing Resolution Number, 19-58 was adopted by the City Council of City of Sierra
Madre at a regular meeting held on the 12th day of November, 2019.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

City Clerk, City of Sierra Madre, California



SB 2 Planning Grants Program Application

State of California
Governor Gavin Newsom

Alexis Podesta, Secretary
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency

Ben Metcalf, Director
Department of Housing and Community Development

2020 West El Camino, Suite 500
Sacramento, CA 95833
Website: http://www.hcd.ca.gov/arants-funding/active-funding/planning-
grants.shiml
Email: sb2planninggrant@hcd.ca.gov

March 28, 2019
Revised July 10, 2019



SB 2 Planning Grants Application
Planning Grants Program Application Packaging Instructions

The applicant is applying to the Department of Housing and Community
Development (Department) for a grant authorized underneath the Planning Grants
Program (PGP) provisions of SB 2 (Chapter 364, Statutes of 2017). The PGP program
is intended for the preparation, adoption, and implementation of plans that streamline
housing approvals and accelerate housing production. Please refer to the SB 2
Planning Grants Program Guidelines and Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for
detailed information on eligible activities, applicants, and awards. If you have questions
regarding this application or the PGP, email sb2planninggrant@hcd.ca.gov.

If approved for funding, this grant application will be a part of your Standard Agreement
with the Department. In order to be considered for funding, all sections of this application,
including attachments and exhibits if required, must be complete and accurate.

Pursuant to Section X of the NOFA, all applicants must submit a complete, signed,
original application package and an electronic copy on CD or USB flash drive
containing the following documentation, in the order listed below, to the Department by
the specified due date in the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) in order to be
considered for award:

1) A complete, signed, original application (the Department will only accept this fillable
pdf as the application) with the following attachments:

a. Attachment 1: State and Other Planning Priorities (All applicants must submit
this form to self-certify compliance)

b. Attachment 2: Nexus to Accelerating Housing Production - NOTE: if the
applicant is proposing only Priority Policy Areas (PPA), as defined in section VI,
subsection (3) of the NOFA, do not fill out Aitachment 2. However, if the applicant
is proposing fo fund PPAs AND other activities that are not considered PPAs, the
application must demonstrate how these other activities have a nexus to
accelerating housing production by filling out Attachment 2 of this application.

2) A fully executed resolution authorizing application for, and receipt of, PGP funds (see
Attachment 3: Sample Resolution).

3) A fully executed Government Agency Taxpayer ID Form (available as a download
from the SB 2 Planning Grants webpage at hitp://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-
funding/active-funding/planning-grants.shtmi).

4) If the applicant is partnering with another local government or other entity pursuant to
Article |l, Section 200 of the SB 2 Planning Grant Program Guidelines (the
“‘Guidelines”), include a copy of the legally binding agreement.

9) Other documentation (e.g., letters of support, scope of work, etc.) if needed.

NOTE: All local governments must submit & separate, signed application package,
notwithstanding whether it will partner with another form of government or entity. Only
one application per locality will be accepted by the Department. Joint applications are
not allowed.

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP Page 2 of 15 2019 Year-1 Grant Application



SB 2 Planning Grants Application

A. Applicant Information

Pursuant to Article i, Section 200 of the Guidelines, local governments may partner through legally binding
agreements with other forms of governments or entities. However, all local governments must submit separate,
signed application packages that identify their respective responsibifities and deliverables, even if partnering with
other entities.

Is the applicant partnering with another eligible focal government entity?
*Yes | *If Yes, the application package must include a fully executed copy of the legally binding
No agreement. Provide the partners’ name(s) and type(s) below for reference only.

Complete the following Applicant information

Applicant's Name City of Sierra Madre

Applicant's Agency Type City

Applicant’s Mailing Address 232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard
City Sierra Madre

State | California Zip Code 91024
County Los Angeles

Website www.cityofsierramadre.com

Authorized Representative Name | Gabriel Engeland
Authorized Representative Title City Manager

Phone |626-355-7135 Fax |

Email |gengeland@cityofsierramadre.com

Contact Person Name Vincent Gonzalez

Contact Person Title Director of Planning and Community Preservation
Phone |626-355-7138 Fax |

Email |vgonzalez@cityofsierramadre.com

Partner(s) Name (if applicable)

Partner Agency Type

Partner(s) Name (if applicable)

Parther Agency Type

Proposed Grant Amount r $ (160,000

B. Applicant Certification

As the official designated by the governing body, | hereby certify that if approved by HCD for funding through the
Planning Grants Program (PGP), the City of Sierra Madre assumes the
responsibilities specified in the 2019 Notice of Funding Availability and PGP guidelines, and certifies that the
information, statements, and other contents contained in this application are true and correct.

Signature: Name; Gabriel Engeland

Date: Title: City Manager

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP Page 3 of 15 2019 Year-1 Grant Application



SB 2 Planning Grants Application

C. Threshold Requirements

Pursuant to Section 201(a) through (d) of the Guidelines, all applicants must meet the foflowing threshold criteria
in items 1-4 below to be eligible for an award.

1. Does the applicant have an adopted housing element found to be in substantial compliance by the
Department on or before the date of the applicant’s submission of their SB 2 Planning Grant application?

V]

Yes

Date of HCD Review Letter;

3121114

No

[]

The Applicant requests HCD to consider housing element compliance threshold as met due to significant

progress achieved in meeting housing element requirements.

2, Has the applicant submitted to the Department the Annual Progress Report (APR) for the current or
prior year on or before the date of submission of their SB 2 Planning Grant application?

[ ]| Yes APR Date Submitted
2017 CY Report 4/3/18
2018 CY Report 6/12/19

[ ]| No

3. Is the applicant utilizing one of the Priority Policy Areas listed below (as defined in section Vil
subsection (3) of the NOFA)?

[]

*Yes

"If the applicant is propasing only Priority Policy Areas, do not fill out Attachment 2. However, if

the applicant is proposing fo fund PPAs AND other activities that are not considered PPAs, the
application must demonstrate how these other activities have a nexus to accelerating housing
production by filling out Attachment 2 of this application.

Rezone to permit Objective design | form based codes Dwelling Units or Expedited infrastructure
- and development coupled with - financing and fee
by-right other low-cost processing "
standards CEQA bllldingstrateaas reduction
streamlining 9 9 strategies

Specific Plans or

Accessory

Housing related

L]

L]

L]

[ ]

L]

If an applicant is not proposing Priority Policy Areas, the application must include an explanation
No and document the plans or processes’ nexus and impact on accelerating housing production based

on a reasonable and verifiable methodology and must submit Attachment 2 in the Application
pursuant to section Vill, subsection (3) of the NOFA.

[]

The applicant is proposing PPAs and other activities not considered PPAs and is demonstrating how these
activities have a nexus to accelerating housing production by submitting Atfachment 2.

4. Does the applicant demonstrate that the locality is consistent with State

Planning or Other Priorities, as certified in Attachment 1?

*No

]

Yes

*If No, consistency may be demonstrated through activities (not necessarily proposed for SB 2 funding) that were

completed within the last five years, as certified in Aftachment 1.

5. Is a- completed and signed resolution included with the application package?
See Aftachment 3, "Sample Resolution”

Yes

No

|

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP

Page 4 of 15

2019 Year-1 Grant Application



SB 2 Planning Grants Application

D. Proposed Activities Checklist (Section VI, items (1) through (17) of the NOFA)

Check all activities the locality is undertaking for their PGP efforts below. Activities must match Section E. Project
Description, and Section F. Timeline and Budget.

updates to general plans, community plans, specific plans, local planning related to implementation

1 \ - .
of sustainable communities strategies, or local coastal plans

2 updates to zoning ordinances

3 environmental analyses that eliminate the need for project-specific review

4 local process improvéments that improve and expedite local planning
a smaller geography with a significant impact on housing production including an overlay district,

5 project level specific plan or development standards modifications proposed for significant areas of
a locality, such as corridors, downtown or priority growth areas

6 the creation or enhancement of a housing sustainability district pursuant to AB 73 (Chapter 371,
Statutes of 2017)

7 workforce housing opportunity zone pursuant to SB 540 (Chapter 369, Statutes of 2017)
zoning for by-right supportive housing, pursuant to Government Code section 65651 (Chapter 753,
Statutes of 2018)

9 zoning incentives for housing for persons with special needs, including persons with developmental
disabilities

rezoning to meet requirements pursuant to Government Code Section 65583.2(c) and other rezoning
efforts to facilitate supply and affordability

rezoning for multifamily housing in high resource areas (according to Tax Credit Allocation
Committee/Housing Community Development Opportunity Area Maps)

10

11

12
13
14
15

pre-approved architectural and site plans

regional housing trust fund plans

funding plans for SB 2 Year 2 going forward

infrastructure financing plans

environmental hazard assessments; data collection on permit tracking; feasibility studies, site
analysis, or other background studies that are ancillary and part of a proposed activity with a nexus
to accelerating housing production

16

17

L O OO0 00000 0 O0RIR

Other activities demonstrating a nexus to accelerating housing production

CA-HCD 8B 2 PGP Page 5 of 15 2019 Year-1 Grant Application



SB 2 Planning Grants Application

E. Project Description

Provide a description of the project and the scope of work to be performed below. Use Appendix A for additional
information if necessary. Note: If partnering with another local government or entity, be sure to clarify the
responsibilities and deliverables of your locality pursuant to such partnership.

1. 2021-2029 Housing Element update: sites inventory analysis, community education and outreach on
potential rezone sites, rezoning as necessary to address RHNA, CEQA on rezoning, public hearings
and adoption of rezoning. (refer to Project Description in Attachment 2, Appendix B)

a. Update existing Housing Element sites inventory based on building permits issued during the prior
planning period and current projects with entitlements. Refine inventory and eliminate sites that fail to
meet the criteria established under AB 1397.

b. Evaluate updated sites inventory in terms of providing adequate sites to address City's draft RHNA
allocation. identify shortfall in sites by density levels, including a sufficient buffer (per SB 166) to offset
any sites developed at lower densities or higher income levels than assumed in the Housing Element.
c. Conduct land use survey to identify potential additional sites as necessary to meet regional needs.
d. Conduct a joint Planning Commission/City Council study session to present potential housing
element sites and strategies to address the RHNA.

e. Conduct two community workshops to discuss housing element site options, and provide maps and
photos of potential sites for review and vetting by the community. Prepare summary report of
community comments and recommendations.

f. Conduct second joint study session before the Planning Commission and City Council to present
community site recommendations, and finalize sites for rezoning.

g. Prepare draft amendments to Zoning Map and Land Use Map.

h. Prepare an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration per CEQA on the rezoning and Land Use
amendment.

f. Conduct Planning Commission and City Council public hearings for adoption.

Projected Outcome: Provide for increase in multi-family housing units at 20 du/acre densities from 16
units to 122 units to address lower income RHNA.

2. Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance Update

a. Prepare draft amendments to Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 17.22 (Second Units) to conform
with recent changes in State ADU/JADU {aw.

b. Conduct study session(s) with Planning Commission to review proposed changes and to consider
community comments, and to direct staff to to finalize a new ADU/JADU ordinance.

c. Conduct Planning Commission and City Council public hearings for adoption.

Projected Outcome: Reduce project processing times from x weeks to x weeks by eliminating
requirement for design review permit for ADUs that exceed floor area maximums.

3. Density Bonus Ordinance Update

a. Prepare draft amendments to Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 17.34 (Affordable Housing) to
conform with recent changes in State density bonus law.

b. Conduct study session(s) with Planning Commission to review proposed changes and to consider
community comments, and to direct staff to to finalize a new affordable housing ordinance.

c. Conduct Planning Commission and City Council public hearings for adoption.

Projected Outcome: Reduce project processing times from x weeks to x weeks by establishing clear
application procedures and time lines for density bonus requests, and eliminating any requirement to
prepare a special report to qualify for incentives/concessions.

4. Optional Task

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP Page 6 of 15 2019 Year-1 Grant Application



F. Project Timeline and Budget

SB 2 Planning Grants Application

Project Name

Objective Responsible Party Est. Cost Begin End Deliverable *PPA Notes
Housing Element sites inventary | Applicant {consultant) $ 20,000 £/13/20 a31/20 bocklet of potential site alternatives | ng
undate ’
Publ<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>